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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of ECap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial staternents of ECap Equities Limited
(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) (hereinafter referred to as *“the Holding Company”), its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising
of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated
Statemnent of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at March 31, 2023, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under
those SAs are further described in the ‘ Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit mafters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported
by them in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.
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KAM reported in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company

Key audif matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model
Loans are measured at amortised cost less
impairment charges.

Loan impairment charges represent
Management’s best estimate of
expected losses on loans at the balance
sheet date.

The expected credit loss method is
subjective and based on various
indicators of past default rates, forward
looking macro economic factors, future
recoveries to the loss given parameter,
credit risk ratings and statistical models.

The impairment provision policy is
presented in note 5.6 under significant
accounting policies in the Ind AS
standalone financial statement,

Our audit procedure included an assessment of the
impairment model applied by the Company.

We assessed and tested the Company’s calculation of
impairment  charges including assessment of
Management’s determination and adaptation of ECL
model variables.

The Company assessed and tested the principles applied
for the determination of impairment scenarios and for the
measurement of collateral values of assets.

We performed test of details, on a sample basis and
inspected the repayment and collections made on the due
dates which forms the basis of staging of financial assets.

Performed analytical procedures by determining various
ratios or percentage based measures to review overall
reasonableness of the estimate determined by the
management.

We reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the Ind AS
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107

KAM as reported by the auditor of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Sr

No Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

losses):

provide for

and fair value through
comprehensive  income)

Impairment of financial assets as at | »
balance sheet date (expected credit

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to
impairment of its
receivables (designated at amortised cost

using

Read
accounting
financial

and assessed the Company’s

policies  for  impairment  of
assets and their compliance with
Ind AS 109 and the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors.
»  Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding
the process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls around
data and validation.

loan

other
the

expected credit loss (ECL) approach.
ECL involves an estimation of probability
weighted loss on financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and

extraction
» Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109.

supportable  information about past | Tested a sample of performing (stage 1)
events, current conditions, and | loans to assess whether any SICR or loss
forecasts of future economic | indicators were present requiring them to
conditions which could impact the | be classified under higher stages.
credit quality of the Company’s loans | »  Assessed the additional considerations
and advances. | applied by the management for staging of
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In the process, a significant degree of | loans as SICR or default categories in view of
judgement has been applied by the | Company’s policy on one time restructuring.
management for:
e Staging of loans (i.e. classification
in  ‘significant increase in  credit
risk’ (“SICR™) and ‘default’
categories),
e Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate
statistical techniques;

»  Tested the ECL model, including
assumptions and  underlying  computation.
. Determining macro-economic Asse.ss.ed_ the ﬂoor/ minimum  rates  of
factors impacting credit quality | provisioning applied by the Company for

e Estimation of behaviourai life

of receivables; loan products with  inadequate historical
defaults

e Estimation of Josses for Jloan | »  Tested assumptions used by the

products with no/ minimal | management in determining the overlay for

historical defaults. macro-econoniic factors.

»  Assessed disclosures  included in  the
financial statements in respect of expected
credit losses.

» Read and assessed the Company’s
accounting  policies for computation and
accounting of sales / assignment of loan
portfolios as per the provisions of Ind AS
109.

» Read and assessed the contracts entered by
the Company for sale/assignment to verify
the pgains/ losses on the transactions.
» Verified the procedures followed by the
company while carrying out the
sale/assignment.

»  Verification of confirmation and fair
valuation of Security receipts.

Sales / Assignment of Financial
5 Assets

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date
of this auditors report, and the Annual report, which is expected to me made available to us after that
date.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

When we read the Board Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those Charged with Governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group each Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; sefection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemnal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic altemative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individualiy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group o cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business actjvities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Maftter

a) We did not audit the financial statements in respect of 3 subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial
statements include total assets of Rs. 28,471.21 million as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues
of Rs. 1,680.08 million and net cash inflow of Rs. 127.18 million for the year ended on that
date are considered in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, These Ind AS financial
statement have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements and auditor’s reports
have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11} of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statemnents;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors;

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133_of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”
to this report;

{g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by Holding Company and its subsidiaries to their directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated
financial position;

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and,

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and subsidiaries during the year ended March
31,2023;

iv. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the note 65(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 65(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other
auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
mis-statement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India only with effect
from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119850W

R.P. zbni

Partner
Membership No.:104796

UDIN: 23104796BGWDNF 1867

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
ECap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) for the year ended 31 March
2023

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies and
included in the consolidated financial statements, have unfavourable remarks, qualifications or adverse
remarks given by the respective auditors in their reports under the Companies (Auditor’s Repost) Order,
2020 (CARO):

Sr. | Name of the CIN Holding Clause number of
No. | Entities Company the CARO report
/Subsidiary which is
unfavourable or
qualified or adverse
1 ECap Equities U74900MH2008PLC287466 | Holding Clause (iii)(c), (iii)(d),
Limited {Formerly Company (vii)}(b), (ix)(d), (xvii)
known as Edel
Land Limited)
2 Edelcap Securities | U67120TG2008PLC057145 | Subsidiary {(vii)(b), (xvii)
Limited
Edelweiss Retail U67120MH1997PLC285490 | Subsidiary (1ii)(e), (ii)(d),(viiXb)
Finance Limited

L)

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 119850W

I . h.--_..
R. P. Soni
Partner

Membership No.: 104796
UDIN: 23104796BGWDNF 1867

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
of ECap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of
ECap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of ECap Equities Limited
(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) (“the Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023,
we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ECap Equities Limited
(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its
subsidiary companies, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

Crror.




i CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

& CO. LLP |

MUMBAI * INDORE * CHITTORGARH

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements is a process designed to provide reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limnitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of coliusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and taking into
consideration the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(1) ofthe Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are based
on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 119850W

R. P. Soni
Partner
Membership No.: 104796

UDIN: 23104796BGWDNF 1867

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023




ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited])
Consolidated Balance Sheet
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and eguipment
Investrent property
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets
{i) Investments
[ii} Loans
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
(i} Stock in trade
(i} Investment
{iii) Trade receivable
{iv) Cash and cash eguivalents
{v) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{vi) Loans
(vii) Derivative financial instruments
{wiii}) Other financial assets
Current t2x assets {net)
Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital

Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

Non controlling Interest

LIABILITIES
Non current liability
Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings
(i} Lease liabilities
{iii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions

Current llability
financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings
{ii) Lease liabilities
{iit) Trade payables

{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
() total sutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

{iv) Derivative financial instruments
[v] Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities {net}

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Significant accounting policies and notes formiog part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:119850W

:ii* - |
R.P.Sonl 't "

Portner

Membership No.:104796
Mumbai

22 May 2023

Note

10

11

12
12 (a)

13
14
15
16
17
i
15

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30
301
31

32(a)
32 (b)
EX]
34

32 (¢}
32(d)

351
35
26
36
37
38
39

1-68

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

667.03 633.99
9a31.22 1,018.21
60.94 60.94
120.48 1.54

- 92.94
29,368.24 10,275.79
2,646.57 452022
0.27 0.22
23.27 .02
396.04 425.97
1,438.63 1,185.50
99.53 111.74
35,814.22 18,353.08
10,441.37 8.586.07
552.48 5,030.61
113.86 707.95
1,739.96 320.81
129.97 150.04
4,992.64 11,259.97
575.20 327.94
1,535.03 99.26
118.28 109.93
267.46 286.58
20,366.25 T6,879.75
56,280.47 25.232.84
184.49 184.49
9,600.00 9,600.00
{3,687.53) (3.540.87)
%,006.96 G,24362
422380 580.53
23,218.66 18,135.15
18.31 8.91
549,03 $1.89
52.86 26.41
23,838.56 18,262.36
19,011.10 17,281.76
7.30 7.21

0.05 3.48
308.71 157.13
609,82 1,396.30
1,947.72 1,036.55
94.01 97.06
26.40 17.17
118.70 19,67
72,170.81 10,136.33
S6,280.47 45,232.84

Mayank Teshniwal
Executive Direclor
DIN: 07030634

Ritesh Jain

Chief financiol officer
Mumbai

22 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directers

&ﬁ,ou_/.ﬂ&
Hari Ram Misra

Director
DIN: 07599248

adesh Agrawal
Compony Secretory



ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited)
Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended for the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
Fee and commission income a0 33.68 19.89
Net gain on fair value changes 41 4,027.02 2,605.53
Qividend income 42 9.12 12.27
tnterest income 13 2,966.30 14,203.12
Rental income 44 167.87 120.03
Sale of commodities 5.435.01 5,089.77
Qther operating revenue 44 (a) 62.30 23.32
Total revenue from operations 12,705.30 12,073.93
Other income 45 31.62 62.81
Total income 12,736.92 12,143.74
Expenses
Purchases of commodities 543571 5,088.30
Employee benefits expense a6 1,366.45 £32.05
Finance costs 47 4,557.80 5,003.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 106.62 118.47
Impairment loss on financial instruments a3 {16.19) 265.63
Qther expenses 49 1,724.56 1,831.48
Total expenses 13,174.95 12,944,384
Profit/{Loss) before tax [438.03) {801.10)
Tax expenses:
Current tax 17.43 20.24
Deferred tax {302.74) 291.18
Profit/{Loss) for the year [152.72) (1,112.52)
Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (OC)) 0.87 0.22)
Fair value loss - OCl - equity - -
Tax effect on remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans {OC1) {0.39) {0.14)
Other comprehensive income 1.26 {0.08)
{b] Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain on debt instruments measured FVYOCI - -
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve - OC| - -
Total - -
Other comprehensive income 1.26 (0.08)
Total comprehensive incame {151.46) [1,112.60)
{Loss)/profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent (170.68) {1,118.97)
Non-centrolling interest 17.96 6.45
Other Comprehensive income attributable to;
Owners of the parent 1.20 {0.05)
Nen-controlling interest 0.06 {0.03)
Total Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent {165.48} {1,119.02)
Non-controlling interest 18.02 6.42
Earnings per equity share: [Face value of Rs 10 each}:
Basic and diluted {in Rs.} 52 (2.82) {31.89)
Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the consolidated linancial statements 1-68
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For NG5S & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Qirecters
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:119850W M M
KT ' \\m»jﬂ"‘ oS [
R.P. Soni Mayank Toshniwal Hari Ram Misra
Portner Executive Director Directar
Membership No.:104726 DIN: 07030634 DIM; 07599248 q’
Mumbai /ﬁz L Jaf .ﬂ;tpow =
—
22 May 2023 / —
Ritesh Jain Swidesh Agrawal
Chief firanciol officer  Company Secretory
Mumbai

22 May 2023



ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)
Consolidated cash flow statement

(Currency:Indian rupees in millions)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Profir / (Loss) before taxation (438.03) (801.10)
Adjustments for

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 106.62 118.47

Impairment on financial instruments (16.19) 265.63

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 36.55 (15.58)
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.13 {0.15)
Dividend income on investment (9.12) (12.27)
Profit on sale of investment (619.03) (77.77)
Share of loss from partnership firm 0.07 (4.19)
Fair value of financial instruments {605.76) 652.20

Interest income (2,895.49) (4,155.26)
Interest expense 4,545.00 4,966.55

Income distribution from fund (222.17) {437.41)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (117.42) 495.12

Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes

(Decrease)/increase in other current liability (3.05) 39.01

(Decrease)/increase in other financial liability 1,368.40 (213.87)
Decrease in trade payable 45.15 57.62

(Decrease)/increase in Derivative financial instruments 125.32 2,108.03

Decrease/(increase) in stock in trade (1,314.83) 5,93%.83

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivable 588.02 (480.48)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (1,437.42) 1,267.40

Decrease in fixed deposit 20.03 137.54

Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 31.33 (40.88)
Cash generated from operations (694.47) 9,309.32

Income tax refund received/(paid) 73.18 140.20

Net cash generated from operating activities - A (621.29) 9,449.52

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of investments (refer note 2) (13,862.43) (2,696.43)
Dividend received 5.12 12.27

Purchase of fixed assets (85.80) (36.30)
Loan repaid (refer note 2) 8,166.88 330.64

Income received from AIF fund 222.17 437.41

Interest received 2,895.49 4,159.26
Net cash generated from investing activities - B (2,654.57) 2,206.85

Cash flow from financing activities

(Repayment of) / Proceeds from subordinated liabilities (refer note 2) 37.41 34.16
Repayment of borrowing (refer note 2) 5,554.49 (11,289.84)
Proceeds from issue of Compulsorily convertible debentures - 5,000.00
Changes in non-controlling interest 3,648.11 (1,089.63)
Interest paid (4,545.00) {4,966.55)
Net cash used in financing activities - C 4,695.01 (12,311.86)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,419.15 (655.49)




ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)
Consolidated cash flow statement

(Currency:indian rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 320.81 976.30
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 1,739.96 320.81
NOtes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents include the following:
Cash on hand - 0.03

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 1,739.96 320.78
- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months ¥ -

2 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.
3 The cashflow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companies
Act {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013.

This is the Consolidated Cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For NGS & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountonts
Firm Registration No.:119850W

LLL%W W

R. P. Soni Mayank Toshniwal  Hari Ram Misra
Portner Executive Director Director
Membership No.:104796 DIN: 07030634 DIN: 07599248
Mumbai C!
22 May 2023 /@"JJW Wﬁ
Ritesh Jain Swadesh Agrawal
Chief financial afficer Company Secretory
Mumbai

22 May 2023




ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eguity

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

{A)

(B

()

Equity share capital

Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital
Balance at the end of the year

Instruments entirely equity in nature- Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in comoulsorily convertible debentures

Balance at the end of the year

Other Equity

As at As al

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
184.49 183.8%

0.60 0.60

185.09 184.4%

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
9,600.00 4,600.00
5,000.00

5,600.00 9,600.00

Reserves and surplus

Capital Capital Securities Share c.apital B0 Ffeserve Revaluation Debentljlre Retained b sk Nen-Controlling
Reserve Redemptton Premium ESOP reserve pending under section 45-1C Reserve reciemp o earnings A Interesks
Reserve allotment of RBI Act, 1934 reserve shareholders
Balance at 01 April 2021 192.76 67.00 2,667.65 31.55 0.61 315.86 325.61 1,119.25 {7,131.93) (2,411.64) 1,674.16
Less for the year - - - - (1,118.97) {1,118.97) 6.45
Other comprehensive income - [0.05} {0.05) {0.03)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - B - - (1,119.02) {1,119.02) 6.42
Issue of shares {0.61) B - 002 {0.59)
Transaclions with shareholders in their capacity as such - - - - - (9.62) {9.62) {1,100.05)
Transfers to / from retained earnings - - - 36.94 {20.05) (16.89) - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 192.76 67.00 2,667.65 31.55 352.80 305.56 1,119.25 (8,277.44) [3,540.87) 580.53
Loss Tor the year - (170.68) {170.68) 17.96
Other comprehensive income 1.20 1.20 0.06
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - {169.48) (169.48} 18.02
I1ssue of shares -
Transactiens with shareholders in their capacity as such - - 22.82 22.82 3,625.29
Transfers (to} / [rom retained earnings - 100.00 - - 55.57 (20.05) (44.93) (90.59) - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 192.76 167.00 2,667.65 31.55 - 408.37 285.51 1,074.32 (8,514.69) [3,687.53) 4,213.84




ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited)
Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

1 Capital reserve:
Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution.

2 Capital redemption reserve:
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital
redemplion reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3 Securities premium:
Securilies premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4 ESOP reserve:
Certain employees of the Company have been granted options to acquire equity shares of the Parem Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited). This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant
dates as recognised over the vesting period of such options, 1o the extent that the Ultimate Parent Cornpany has not recavered such cost from the Company.

5 Special Reserve under section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934: '
Every non-banking financiai company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenly per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

& Revaluation reserve:
The Company decided to move to revaluation model from cost model for accoumting a class of asset {i.e. flats and building) as at 315t March 2020. The management approved revaluation of owned land and buildings classified under
property planl and equipment after assessing the valuation made by duly appointed independent valuer. The difference between valualion amount and 1he carrying value of land and buildings is accounted under Revaluation Reserve
through other comrehensive income,

7 Dehenture redemption reserve:
The Companies Acl 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to creale a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. The Cempany is required to transfer a speciflied percentage (as
provided in the Companies Act, 2013) of the ouistanding redeemabte debentures to debenture redempiion reserve. The amounts crediled to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised except 1o redeem debentures. On

redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equily referred to in our report of even date.

For NGS & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chortered Accauntants
Firm Registration No.:119850wW A
1
R Mg lN—F  ldeb sy
0 i,
R. P. Soni Mayank Toshniwatl Hari Ram Misra
Partner Executive Director Director
Mambership No.:104796 DIN: Q7030634 DIN: 075992438
Mumbai WUVC'._
22 May 2023 /@’L{j o % -_—
Ritesh Jain Swadesh Agrawal
Chief finoncial afficer Compony Secretory
Mumbai

22 May 2023



ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Background

Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 08
October 2008 as a public limited company and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited.

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements relate to Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land
Limited) (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (together ‘the Group’) and associates. The
Group is primarily engaged in (a) agency business which includes Broking, advisory and other
fee based services, (b) Capital based business which includes income from lending business
and (c) Treasury business which includes income from trading and investment activities.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for entities under liquidation / dissolution and certain financial instruments such as
financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value through profit or loss and other
financial assets held for trading which have been measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements
The Group presents its balance sheet in compliance with the Division Il of the Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet.
They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

s the normal course of business
s the event of default
s the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current,

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale
or consumption in, the group’s normal operating cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose
of being traded or it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date or
it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or expected to be
used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Current assets
include the current portion of non-current assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.




Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in the group’s normal
operating cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded or it is due to be settled
within 12 months after the reporting date or the group does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of
the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue

of equity instruments do not affect its classification. Current liabilities include current
portion of non-current liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

4, Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as on 31 March 2023, comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023. The Company
consolidates a subsidiary when it controls it. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Generally, there is a presumption
that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

o The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the
holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to
that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies. However, no
subsidiaries and associates have followed different accounting policies than those followed
by the Group for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e. year ended on 31 March 2023.




Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Consolidation procedure:

e Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

o Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary
and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

e Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting
from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full),
Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits
and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction. With respect to put options granted by the Group to the holders of
non-controlling interests in a subsidiary, where the Group does not have a present
ownership interest in the shares subject to put, till the put remains unexercised, non-
controlling continues to be recognised including allocation of profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and other changes in equity of the subsidiary. However, at each
reporting date, the non-controlling interest is derecognised as if it were acquired at that
date and a financial liability is recognised and measured at its fair value. The difference
between these two amounts is recognised as an equity transaction and attributed to owners
of the parent.

The financial statements of all subsidiaries incorporated outside India are converted on the
following basis: (a) Income and expenses are converted at the average rate of exchange
applicable for the period/year and {b) All assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate as on the Balance Sheet date. The exchange difference arising out of period/year end
translation is debited or credited as “Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve” forming part of
Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated as a separate component of other equity.




Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Investment in associates:

5.1

5.11

5.1.2

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee, but
its not control or joint control over those policies.

The list of subsidiaries and associates considered in the consolidated financial statements is
as below:

Sr. Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of
No i .
Incokpargion ownership interest

as at

31 March 2023

Subsidiaries

1 Edelcap Securities Limited India 100.00%
2 Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ! India 93.02%
3 India Credit Investment Fund Il India 69.00%

! held alongwith Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes:
a) With effect from 01 October 2022, Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund has ceased to
become a subsidiary of the Company and has not been consolidated from that date.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Fee income including advisory fees for services rendered is accounted over the period as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCI. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The Group recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises
the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and
charges).

if expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest
income.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-i ; the
Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.




Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.15
5.1.6

5.1.7
5.1.8
5.1.9

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI} financial assets, the Company calculates
interest income by calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the
amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest rate that, at original
recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows {including credit losses) to the
amortised cost of the POC| assets.

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss when the Group’s right to
receive payment of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Brokerage income is recognised as per contracted rates at the time of execution of
transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of related sub-
brokerage expenses, goods and service tax (“GST”), transaction charges and stock exchange
expenses.

Profit/loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis.

Profit / loss from share in partnership firm is accounted once the amount of the share of
profit/ loss is ascertained and credited / debited to the Group’s account in the books of the
partnership firm.

Income from training centre is recognised on accrual basis.
Commoaodities sales are accounted as per the terms of agreement with parties.

Rental income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the agreements entered.
Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Group recognises
borrowings when funds are availabie for utilisation to the Group.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at
origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable
in market transactions, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price
and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. [n those cases where fair value is based on




Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5.3
5.3.1

transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets:

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

*  Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

*  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI]
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

*  Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at
FVTPL. The Group measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each
reporting ate. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and
loss account.

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

« if those sales are infrequent {even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

. If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale

approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow.

o  Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income {except for debt instruments that are

designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
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5.3.1.1 Amortized cost and Effective interest rate method {EIR)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts {including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance, On the other hand, the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

5.3.1.2 Financial assets held for trading

The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are
recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

5.3.1.3 Financial asset measured at FVOCI

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or
losses are recycled to statement of profit and loss. Interest income on such instrument is
recognised in statement of profit and loss as per EIR method.

5.3.1.4 Investment in equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries) at fair
value through profit or loss, unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some
of its strategic equity investments to be measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet
the definition of Equity under ind AS and are not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

5.3.2 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except [oan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

5.3.2.1 Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the instrument

and EIR.
The Group issues benchmark linked non-convertible debentures, the return of which is ———_
= ipa =
linked to performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such -_',,-;__;-_-.\R
{f s W




Ecap

Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5.3.2.2

5.3.23

5.3.2.4

debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting
date. The resultant ‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded
derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such
debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL
upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

e The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; or

e The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or
it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in statement of profit and loss with the exception
of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Group’s
own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through
OCl and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments
designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR,
taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral

part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL
is recorded using contractual interest rate.

Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Group to make specified payments to
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate
are initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the
guarantee or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised
amount and the amount of loss allowance.

Loan Commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Group is required to
provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the
commitment.
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5.4

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Derivatives

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts
and interest rate swaps.

Group has designed a risk strategy based to cover exposure on issuance of Benchmark
Linked Debentures, by entering into a derivative contract either to minimise the loss or to
earn a minimum committed income by entering into a combination of derivative contracts
(say for example purchased call and put options) with a wide variety of strike prices. Above
strategy has been approved by the risk committee and ensures that risk is fully or partially
covered, hence supports to reduce the risk exposure.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value through profit or loss. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit
and loss immediately.

Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes
some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be
modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign exchange rate, or other variable,
provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the
contract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the hast contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
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5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan,
with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial asset are
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is
deemed to be POCI.

When assessing whether or not to derecognise a financial asset, among others, the Group
considers the following factors:

- Change in currency of the loan
Introduction of an equity feature
Change in counterparty

f the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Group records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

e The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset; or

e |t retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’
arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual
recipients’}, when all of the following conditions are met:

e The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances
with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

e The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients

The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.
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A transfer qualifies for derecognition if either:

s The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
s The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that
ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial
liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all financial assets, other than
financial assets held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee
contracts. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

For all other financial assets, where ECL to be recognised, the Group recognises lifetime ECL
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR} since initial recognition. If, on
the other hand, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for such instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at
the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
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that is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default (EAD).
The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. As for the EAD, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the borrowers, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Group
recognises an impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in the profit and loss statement
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

If a financial instrument includes both a loan (i.e. financial asset) and an undrawn
commitment {i.e. loan commitment) component and the Group cannot separately identify
the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the financial asset component,
the ECL on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss allowance for
the financial asset. To the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset, the ECL have been recognised as a provision. Also, for other loan
commitments and all financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance has been recognised
as a provision.

5.7 Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded
on the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It
is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis.
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets heid as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models.

5.8 Collateral repossessed

The Group’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal——-
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operations are transferred to their relevant asset categary at the lower of their reposses Ao }
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5.11

value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is
determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value {if
financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financiai assets at the repossession
date in, line with the Group’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Group does not physically repossess properties or other
assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/obligors.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Forborne and modified loan

The Group sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a
response to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to
otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Group considers a loan forborne when such
concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected
financial difficulties and the Group would not have agreed to them if the borrower had been
financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on covenants, or
significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involive
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as
calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Group’s policy to monitor forborne
loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition
decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case
basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as
an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.

Determination of fair value

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
« Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair val
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inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

* Llevel 1 financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group has access at the measurement date. The Group considers markets as active
only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of
the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price
quotes available on the balance sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and
are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available
over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

* level 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that
is significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are
recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Group periodically
reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model
calibrations.

Therefore, the Group applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach
that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the
individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-
collateralised financial instruments.

The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the
reporting period.

Leases

Group as a lessee:

The Group has applied IND AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore
comparative information has not been restated. This means that the comparative
information is still reported under Ind AS 17.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. The Groups applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, iess
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabiliti
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commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments} less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the [ease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the lease payments (eg; changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Group has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term
leases of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Group recognises lease
payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases that transfer substantially
all the risk and reward of ownership as finance leases. Assets held under other leases are
classified as operating lease and were not recognised in Company Balance sheet. Payments
made under operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, in which case lease payments are recognised
based on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Group as a lessor:

The Group’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative
period. As a lessor the Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A
lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does
not.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
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5.15.3

shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the
functional currency of the Parent. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e.
foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated,

Exchange differences-on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefit

Provident fund and national pension scheme
The Group contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is
a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Group's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect
of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if
any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined
based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The employees based out of U.A.E are eligible for end of service benefits in accordance with
the U.A.E Labour Laws. The provision for end of service benefits is done based on current
remuneration and periods of service at the end of the reporting period.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Group are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Group recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.
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Deferred Bonus

The Company has adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan under its Deferred Variable Compensation
Plan. A pool of identified senior employees of the Company is entitled for benefits under this
plan. Such deferred compensation will be paid in a phased manner over a future period of
time The measurement for the same has been based on actuarial assumptions and
principles.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services
that are granted by the ultimate parent Group are measured by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date. These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs)
where the right to receive the difference between the SAR price and the market price of
equity shares of the ultimate parent Company on the date of exercise, either by way of cash
or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company, is at the discretion of the
ultimate parent Company. These are classified as equity settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in statement of
profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the ‘ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted
vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate
grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of
each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned
above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation
is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended
use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto
the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group has evaluated
the useful lives of the respective property, plant and equipment which are as per the
provisions of Part C of the Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:
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Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Class of assets Useful Life
Building (Other than factory building) 60 years
Plant and equipment 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vessel 13 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers and data processing units - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers and data processing units - End user devices, such as 3 years
desktops, laptops, etc.

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets or the period of lease whichever is shorter.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property, plant and equipment in the
statement of financial position - refer to the accounting policy 5.12. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is
derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

5.17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated
useful life. For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its intangible assets recagnised as of 1 April 2017 {transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

The Group’s intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible
asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of

acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life.
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5.18

5.19

5.20

Investment property

Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital
appreciation are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost,
including transaction costs.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the
investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule 1I
to the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful
life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or
the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Business Combination :

Business combinations except under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values with
certain limited exceptions. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Common controiled business combination means a business combination involving entities
or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control
is not transitory. Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common
contirol are accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
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5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

Management and Incentive fees

The investment manager, in addition to management fee, also receives a performance profit
allocation in respect of all classes of units. The incentive fee is calculated at the end of every
performance period on a unit-by-unit basis so that each class of unit is charged an incentive
fee, which equates fairly with that unit’s performance. At the end of each performance
period, the incentive fee is calculated as a % of the appreciation in the NAV per class of unit
(before accrual or deduction of the incentive fee) over the reference price per class of unit
and after accounting for the hurdle rate.

Trusteeship fees

The trustee is entitled to receive a trusteeship fee as mutually agreed between the trustee
and the settler.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
aresult of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. Claims against the Group, where the possibility
of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Provisions for Income Taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time
periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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5.26

5.26.1

5.26.2

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax (net).

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carryforward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or
back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable
that:

e the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

e tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period

and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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5.26.3 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

6.1

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Group
recognises unsed MAT credit as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it is probable
that the Group will be able to utilise during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognises
deferred tax asset (MAT credit) as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss. The Group reviews the MAT asset at each reporting date and
writes down the asset to the extent that it is not probable that the Group will be able to
utilise it during the specified period.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the management is required to make
judgments’, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

a. Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI} and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Company maonitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset
was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets. :
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6.2

b. Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

c. Consolidation of structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights
relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of
contractual arrangements. In the context of the Company, structured entities comprise
securitisation trusts in asset reconstruction business, mutual fund schemes and alternative
investment funds / schemes thereof. The Company consolidates the structured entities that
it contrals. When making this judgement, the Campany also considers voting and similar
rights available to itself and other parties, who may limit the Company’s ability to control,
including rights to appoint, reassign or remove members of the structured entity’s key
management personnel who have the ability to direct the relevant activities, the exposure to
variability of returns and whether the Company has the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of the Company’s returns i.e. the variability of returns in relation to the total returns
of the investee entity.

d. Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or not, to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise
or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehald improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the stand-alone financial statements are prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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a. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values.

For Investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow
model, given that the SRs are less liquid instruments. Expected cash flow levels including
timing of cash flows are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding
the characteristics of the underlying assets including default rates, nature and value of
collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are
based on models, Judgements and estimates are applied, which include considerations of
liguidity, credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjuétments, correlation and
volatility.

b. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢ PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions.

¢ The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit
foss and the qualitative assessment.

* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

¢ Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

+ Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD.

s Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss_experience

and adjust when necessary.
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c. Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected
behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense
that are integral parts of the instrument.

d. Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the
Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the
estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved business plans and
budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which the Company
expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

e. Estimating the incremental borrowing rate:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it
uses its incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. Incremental
borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

7. Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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8.

Merger Note

Pursuant to the composite scheme of arrangement and amalgamation under section 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 as sanctioned by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Hyderabad on Sth February, 2022 and as sanctioned by National Company Law Tribual
(NCLT), Mumbai on 10th January, 2022, Edel Land Limited (‘Amalgamated or Resulting
Company’), ECap Equities Limited (‘Demerged Company’ — defined in the scheme as
demerged undertaking and thereby entire activities, business, operations and undertakings
of the Demerged Company forming part of the Trading and Capital Markets business) and EC
Commodity Limited (‘Amalgamating Company’) has been amalgamated with effect from 01
April 2020 (‘the Appointed date’}. Accordingly, the financial results of Edel Land Limited have
been prepared taking into account the effect of the composite scheme of arrangement and
amalgamation and the said orders. The NCLT Mumbai merger order has been filed with
Registrar of Companies (ROC) on 03rd March 2022 and NCLT Hyderabad order has been filed
with ROC on 25th March 2022.
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9

Property, plant and equipment

Gross block Depreciation Net black
Descriptian of assets As at Additlons during  Disposals during As at A.s at Charge for the Olsposals during As at As at
1 April 2022 the year the year 31 March 2023 1 April 2022 year the year 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Land 41.42 - - 41.42 - - - 41.42
Building 577.30 - 577.30 71.11 29.36 100.47 476.83
Leaseheld improvemnents 3.89 - 0.16 373 3.25 0.45 0.16 3.54 0.19
ROU Asset 119.59 19.53 0.46 138.66 106.54 8.20 114,74 23.92
Plant and equipment 5.23 0.04 5.27 2.87 0.43 330 197
Furniture and fittings 66.09 36.35 0.87 10157 14.98 13.56 0.72 27.82 73.75
Motor vehicles 244 201 0.43 1.76 0.42 177 0.41 0.02
Office equipments 62.40 2.65 9.33 55.72 55.57 1.29 9.02 47.84 7.88
Computers 90,25 39.76 22.07 107.94 76.05 12,77 19.87 68.95 38.99
Vessel 4.84 4.84 2.33 0.45 - 2.78 2.06
Total 973.45 98.33 34.90 1,036.88 334.48 66.93 31.54 369.85 667.03
Gross block Depreciation Net Block
Description of assets As at Additions during  Disposals during As at As at Charge for the Disposals during As at As at
1 April 2021 the year the year 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 year the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

Land 41.42 41.42 - - - 41.42
Building 577.3¢ E 577.30 39.99 31.17 - 71.11 506.19
Leasehold improvements 8.56 0.32 4.99 3.89 5.77 1.55 4.07 3.25 0.64
ROU Asset 180.67 37.34 98.42 119.59 78.52 28.02 - 106.54 13.05
Plant and equipment 4.07 1.16 5.23 2.54 0.33 287 2.36
Furniture ang fittings 32.89 44.07 10.87 66.09 22.05 2.52 9.59 1498 51.11
Motor vehicles 3.92 0.43 1.91 2,44 2.85 0.34 1.43 1.76 0.68
Office equipmants 64.81 0.72 3.13 62.40 56.83 1.50 2.76 55.57

Cemputers % 100.15 0.83 10.73 90.25 77.03 8.93 9.91 76.05

Vessel .i:? 4.84 - 4.84 1.70 0.63 2.33

Total 1,018.63 84.87 130.05 973.45 287.23 74.99 27.76 334.46

B
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10 Investment property

Gross block Depreciation Net block
As dditl d Di: I | i
Description of assets at A ons during isposals during As at A? at Charge for the Dispaosals during As at As at
1 April 2022 the year the year 31 March 2023 1April 2022 year the year 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Building 983.69 - - 983.69 22253 38.06 - 260.59 723.10
tand 228.35 36.93 191.42 - - 191.42
Property 2870 - 28.70 - 28.70
Total 1,240.74 - 36.93 1,203.81 222.53 38.06 - 260.59 943.22
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Asat itions duri Di: 1 A A i i
Description of assets s a Additions during spesals during s at < at Charge for the Dispasals during As at As at
1 April 2021 the year the year 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 year the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Building 983.69 o 583.69 182.47 40.06 222.53 761.16
Land 228.35 - 22835 - - 228.35
Property 28.70 S 28.70 - - 5 L 28.70
Total 1,240.74 - 1,240.74 182.47 40.06 222.53 1,018.21
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11  Goodwill
Gross block Depreciation Net block
As at Additions durlng  Dlsposals during As at As at Charge for the Disposals during As at As at
Description of assets .
1 April 2022 the year the year 31 March 2023 1 April 2022 year the year 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Goodwill 60.94 60.94 - 60.94
Total 60.94 - 60.94 60.94
Gross block Depreciation Net block
. As at Addltions during  Disposals during As at As at Charge for the Dlsposals durfng As at As at
Description of assets K
1 April 2021 the year the year 31 March 2022 1 Aprll 2021 year the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Goodwill 60.94 - 60.99 - 60.94
Total 60.54 - - 60.94 - - : 60.94
12 Other Intangible Assets
Grass block Depreaciation Net block
. As at Additlons during  Disposals during As at As at Charge for the Disposals durlng As at Asat
Description of assets .
1April 2022 the year the year 31 march 2023 1Aprll12022 year the year 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Computer soltware 48.83 120.57 165.40 47.29 1.63 48.92 120.48
Total 48.83 120.57 169.40 47.29 1.63 48,92 120.48
Gross biock Depreciation Net block
e As at Additions during  Disposals during As at Asat Charge for the Disposals during As at As at
Description of assets
1 April 2021 the year the year 31 March 2022 1April 2021 year the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Computer software 79.92 0.68 3L 48.83 68.16 342 24.2% 47.2% 154
Total 79.92 0.68 31.77 48.83 68.16 3.42 24.29 47.29 1.54
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12 (a) Intangible Assets Under Development

{i) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-

B Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development as at March 31, 2023
Intangible Assets Under Development Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Project in progress
Digital Lending Platform (DLP)* - - - -
Total - - - -
Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development as at March 31, 2022
Intangible Assets Under Development I & P Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years
Project in progress
Digital Lending Platform (DLP}* 40.62 52.32 - - 92.94
Total 40,62 52.32 - - 92.94

{ii) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, refer below schedule:-

As at 31 March 2023

T leted |
Intangible Assets Under Development © be completed in Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Digital Lending Platform {DLP)* - - - -
Total - - - - -
As at 31 March 2022
To be completed in
Intangible Assets Under Development E Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Digital Lending Platform (DLP}* 125.00 - - - 125.00
Total 125.00 - - - 125.00
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13 Investments

As at 31 March 2023

At
K At fair value | At fair value | At cost {assoclates, and
amortised X Total
through OCI | through P&L joint ventures)
Particulars cost
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) = (1+2+3+4)

Investments In equity instruments of other campanies - - 6,992.99 6,992.99
Investments in preference shares of other companies - 316.56 316.56
Investments in debt securities of other companies - 91.15 - 91.15
Investments in debt securities of group companies 2,517.16 - 2,517.16
Investments in securlfy receipts 13,181.06 13,181.06
Investments in group companies

Equity 1,274.10 1,274.10
Investments in units of fund
Units of Alternative Investment Funds 5,364.36 5,364.36
Investment in Warrants - 52.50 52.50
Investment In partnership firm - - 0.05 0.05
Total - Gross (A) 2,517.16 - 25,998.62 1,274.15 29,789.93
tess: Allowance for impairment {B) 0.27 421,43 . 421.69
Total Net (A-B) 2,516.89 - 25,577.19 1,274.15 29,368.24
Investments in India 2,516.89 - 25,577.19 1,274.15 29,368.24
Investments outside India - - - -
Total 2,516.89 25,577.19 1,274.15 29,368.24
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13

Investments (continued)
As at 31 March 2022
At . . .
At fair value | At fair value | At cost (associates, and
amortised . Total
through OCI | through P&L joint ventures)
Particulars cost
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) = (1+2+3+4)

Investements in equity instruments of other companies - 1,403.11 - 1,403.11
Investements in preference shares of other companies 723.12 723.12
Investments in debt securities of other companlies - 85.60 85.60
Investments In debt securities of group companies 398.96 - 398.96
Investments In security receipts - 1,246.14 1,246.14
Investments in group companies

Equity - 1,274.10 1,274.10

Preference shares 378.15 378.1%
Investments In units of fund
Units of Alternative [nvestment Funds 3,551.08 - 3,551.08
Units of Alternative Investment Funds - in associate - 1,840.39 1,840.39
Investments in warrants 52.50 52.50
Investment in partnership firm - 0.05 0.05
Total - Gross (A) 777.11 - 8,901.94 1,274.15 10,953.20
Less: Allowance for impairment {B) 0.07 - 677.34 - 677.41
Total Net (A-B) 777.04 - 8,224.60 1,274.15 10,275.79
Investments in India 777.04 8,224.60 1,274.15 10,275.79
investments outside India - - - - -
Total 777.04 - 8,224.60 1,274.15 10,275.79
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
13.1 Investments

Unconsolidated structured entities

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars Alternative Maximum Alternative Maximum

investment exposure investment exposure

funds funds

Investments at fair value 4,833.33 4,833.33 4,693.07 4,693.07
Total Assets 4,833.33 4,833.33 4,693.07 4,693.07
Off-balance sheet exposure 8,734.43 NA 3,179.98 NA
Size of the structured entities 72,145.09 NA 80,370.28 NA
Income from the structured entities 222.17 NA 437.41 NA
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

14 Loans

At amortised cost

Term Loans
Loans 2,768.85 6,944.00
Total Gross 2,768.85 6,944.00

Less: Impairment loss allowance -
{(including on loan commitments) 122.28 2,423.78

Total (Net) 2,646.57 4,520.22

Secured by tangible assets (Property including land , building

and securities) 1,549.46 3,691.71
Unsecured 1,219.39 3,252.29
Total Gross 2,768.85 6,944.00

Less: impairment loss allowance
(including on loan commitments) 122.28 2,423.78

Total (Net) 2,646.57 4,520.22

Loans in India

Public Sectors - -
Others 2,768.85 6,944.00
Total Gross 2,768.85 6,944.00

Less: Impairment loss allowance
(including on loan commitments) 122.28 2,423.78

Total (Net) 2,646.57 4,520.22
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15

16

17

18

19

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits with banks 0.25 0.21

Accrued interest on fixed deposits 0.02 0.01
0.27 0.22

Encumbrances’ on fixed deposits held by the Group

The Group has pledged fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 0.25 million (Previous year: Rs. 0.21 million) with sales tax authorities for

meeting deposit requirements.

Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good )
Security deposits 14.28 14.29
Deposit - others 3.88 3.62
Deposits placed with/exchange/depositories 5.11 311
23.27 21.02
Current tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes {net off provision for tax) 396.04 425.97
396.04 425.97
Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets
Provision for non-performing, restructured and doubtful advances - ECL
provision 361.33 387.12
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on lending - 0.23
Unrealised loss on Derivatives 0.05 -
Provision for leave accumulation 2.75 2.13
Disallowances under section 43B of the {(ncome Tax Act, 1961 38.07 28.54
Accumulated losses 1,470.80 1,185.13
Lease liability 6.45 4.06
Others 71.40 34.56
Total (A) 1,950.85 1,641.77
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between book and tax depreciation {including intangibles) 151.12 221.86
Unrealised gain on derivatives 31.92 22.64
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on lending 1.35 -
Recognition of interest strip on assignement deals 25.57 13.44
Fair valuation of investments and stock-in-trade - gain in valuation 204.38 183.68
Provision for dimunition in value of current investments 31.50 -
Effective interest rate on financial liabilities 10.36 11.37
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 6.02 3.28
Total (B) 462.22 456.27
Total (A-B) 1,488.63 1,185.50
Other non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 0.95 1.03
Input tax credit 98.58 110.71
99.53 111.74
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18.1

(a)

(b)

Income tax disclosure

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Current tax (Includes current income tax of prior years ) 17.43 20.24
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (387.02) (76.09)
Write-down of deferred tax asset (other than on unused tax losses and unused tax credits) - -
Deferred tax asset recognised on unused tax credit or unused tax losses 84.27 367.27
Total tax charge (285.31) 311.42
Current tax 17.43 20.24
Deferred tax (302.74) 291.18

Reconciliation of total tax charge :

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements (438.03) (801.10)
Tax rate (in percentage) 0.25 0.24
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate (110.46) (195.78)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 4.80 (9.28)
Effect of Income not subject to tax:

Others (27.71) (26.05)
8onus reversal and other disallowable 0.01 0.50
Interest expenses on preference capital - -
Interest income on preference capital - 27.11
Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-period losses 95.35 113.85
Effect of recognition of deferred tax asset on prior period losses - earlier not recognised (194.13) -
Effect of utilisation of tax losses or deferred tax assets on losses earlier recognised now considered - (3.46)
not recoverable

Write-down of available tax credits which are not considered recoverable (for example, Minimum

Alternate Tax credit) ) )
Recognition of available tax credits (for example, Minimum Alternate Tax credit) - 139.61
impact of tax rate changes {61.80) 255.57
Others 8.63 9.35
Tax charge for the year recorded in consolidated statement of profit and lass (285.31) 311.42
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18.1

(c)

Income tax disclosure

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:

Movement for the period (2022-23)
Opening deferred Recognised in Recognised in Closing deferred
tax asset / other tax asset /
N statement of Total movement o
(liability) as per ) comprehensive {liability) as per
Ind AS profit and loss income Ind AS

Deferred taxes in relation to:
Difference between book and (200.50) 51.37 51.37 (149.12)
tax depreciation - Property,
plant and equipment
Difference between book and (21.36) 19.37 - 19.37 (2.00)
tax depreciation - Intangibie
assets
Fair valuation of stock in trade (77.72) 89.72 89.72 12.00
Fair valuation of investments (105.96) (110.42) (110.42) (216.38)
Employee benefits obligations 30.67 9.96 0.19 10.15 40.82
Lease liability 4.06 2.39 - 2.39 6.45
Interest spread on assignment (13.44) (12.13) - {12.13) (25.57)
transactions
Effective interest rate on 0.23 {1.58) (1.58) (1.35)
financial assets
Effective interest rate on {11.37) 1.01 1.01 (10.36)
financial liabilities
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (3.28) (2.74) - {2.74) (6.02)
Expected credit loss provision 387.12 (25.79) - (25.79) 361.33
fFair valuation of derivatives (22.64) {9.23) - (9.23) (31.87)
Dimunition in value of current - {31.50) - (31.50) (31.50)
investments
Unused tax losses (including 1,185.13 285.67 - 285.67 1,470.80
but not limited to business
losses, unabsorbed
depreciation)
Others 34.56 36.64 0.20 36.84 71.40
Total 1,185.50 302.74 0.39 303.12 1,488.63
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18.1 |Income tax disclosure

(c)

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:

(continued)

Movement for the period {2021-22)
Opening deferred X . Recognised in Closing deferred
tax asset / Recognised in other tax asset /
- statement of . Total movement| . .
(liability) as per comprehensive (liability) as per
Ind AS profit and loss income Ind AS

Deferred taxes in relation
to:
Difference between book and (158.93) (41.57) - (41.57) (200.50)
tax depreciation - Property,
plant and equipment
Difference between book and (21.30) (0.06) - {0.06) (21.36)
tax depreciation - Intangible
assets
Fair valuation of stock in trade (7.81) (69.91) (69.91) (77.72)
Fair valuation of investments (105.96) - - - (105.96)
Employee benefits obtigations 27.36 3.26 0.05 331 30.67
Lease liability 27.91 (23.85) - (23.85) 4.06
Interest spread on assignment (13.74) 0.30 - 0.30 (13.44)
transactions
Stage 3 Income recognition (0.24) 0.24 - 0.24 -
Effective interest rate on (1.06} 1.29 - 1.29 0.23
financial assets
Effective interest rate on (14.35) 2.98 - 2.98 (11.37)
financial liabilities
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (25.69) 22.41 - 22.41 (3.28)
Expected credit loss provision 264.77 122.35 - 122.35 387.12
Fair valuation of derivatives 6.98 (29.62) - (29.62) (22.64)
Unused tax losses (including 1,290.40 (105.27) - (105.27) 1,185.13
but not limited to business
losses, unabsorbed
depreciation)
Unused tax credits (including 139.61 (139.61) - (139.61) -
but not limited to Minimum
Alternate Tax credit)
Others 68.58 (34.12) 0.09 (34.03) 34.56
Total 1,476.54 (291.18) 0.14 {291.04) 1,185.50
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

18.1 Income tax disclosure

(d) The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:

{continued)

Break-up of recognition of 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

current tax

In statement of profit and 17.43 20.24
loss
In other comprehensive {0.39) {0.14)
income

Break-up of income tax 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

recorded in OCt
Deferred tax
Employee benefits (0.39) (0.14)
obligations

(e) Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the balance sheet

As at 31 March 2023 Unused business loss |
Financial Year ending Amount | Loss Expiry year |
31 March 2023 378.82 | 31March2031

Total| 831.13 | |
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20 Stock in trade
At fair value through profit and loss

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars
Equity instruments {quoted) 31.81 377.15
Mutual fund (quoted) 483.77 1,377.90
Debt securities (quoted) 9,925.79 6,831.02
Total - Gross [A) 10,441.37 8,586.07

Stock in trade outside India . .
Stock in trade in India 10,441.37 8,586.07

Total (B) 10,441.37 8,586.07

Less: Allowance for impairment (C) : - R

Total Net (A-C) 10,441.37 8,586.07
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Investments

As at 31 March 2023

. At fair value | Atfairvalue | At cost (associates,
Particulars At amortised cost o Total
through OCl | through P&L | and joint ventures)
(1) (2) 3) (4) 5=(1+2+3+4)
Investments in preference shares of group companies 406.68 - - 123.88 530.56
Investments in debt securities of other companles 22.67 22.67
Investment in partnership firm - current account 2.70 2.70
Total - Gross (A) 429.35 - 126.58 555.93
Less: Allowance for impairment (B} 3.45 - 3.4S
Total Net (A-B) 425.90 126.58 552.48
(i) Investments outside India - - -
(i) Investment in India 425.90 126.58 552.48
Total 425.90 - - 126.58 552.48
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars At nised cast At fair value | Atfairvalue | At cost (associates, Total
u
amortised cos through OCl | through P&L | and joint ventures)
(1) (2) (3) (4) 5=(1+2+3+4)
Investments in preference shares of group companies 3,858.36 123.88 3,982.24
Investments in debt securities of other companies 1,045.60 - 1,045.60
Investment in partnership firm - current account - - 2.77 2,77
Total - Gross (A) 4,903.96 - 126.65 5,030.61
Less: Allowance for impairment (B} - - - -
Total Net (A-B) 4,903.96 - 126.65 5,030.61
(i) Investments outside India - - - -
(ii) Investment in India 4,903.96 126.65 5,030.61
Total 4,903.96 - - 126.65 5,030.61
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Receivables

Trade receivables

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Receivables considered good - unsecured

Receivables - credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

120.32 713.33
0.65 0.14
120.97 713.47
7.11 5.52
113.86 707.95

Reconciliation of impairment allowance cn trade and lease receivables:

Particulars Amount
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified
approach
Impairment atllowance as on 31 March 2022 5.52
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired (net) 159
Impairment allowance as an 31 March 2023 7.11
Provision matrix for Trade receivables
More than 2
Trade receivables days past due Less than & 6 manths -1 year 1-2 years are than Total
months years
As at 31 March 2023
Undisputed Trade receivables — considerad good 117.70 6.07 - 117.77
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered doubtful - 0.25 231 0.65 3.21
ECL provision {3.93) (0.23) [2.31) [0.65) {7.12)
MNet carrying amount 113.77 0.09 - - 113.88
As at 31 March 2022
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 712.68 0.02 - - 712.70
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered doubtful - - 0.63 0.14 0.77
ECL provision (4.74) -0.01 (0.63) (0.14) (5.52)
Net carrying amount 707.94 0.01 - - 707.95
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24

24.1

25

As at
31 March 2023

Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2022

Cash on hand - 0.03
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 1,739.96 320.78
-in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - -
1,739.96 320.81
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits (refer note 24.1) 107.74 127.86
Accrued interest on fixed deposits 0.22 0.17
Long term bank deposits with banks (fixed deposits) 22,01 22.01
129.97 150.04
Encumbrances’ on fixed depaosits held by the Group
Given as credit enhancements towards securitisation 106.97 22.06
Given as coliateral against the Bank overdraft - 15.54
Pledged with Indusind bank for obtaining the hank guarantee provided to mandi for
license requirements 3.20 3.08
Pledged with sales tax authorities for meeting deposit requirements - 0.03
Pleadged with National Stock Exchange for meeting margin requirements 7.18 7.18
Loans
at amortised cost:
Loans to related parties 1,487.20 7,708.16
Loans.-to others 3,697.00 3,412.19
Inter corporate deposit 3,694.98 2,166.20
Total Gross 3,879.18 13,286.55
Less: Impairment loss allowance
{including on loan commitments) 3,886.54 2,026.59
Total {Net) 4,992.64 11,259.96
Secured by tangible assets 3,212,956 2,676.01
Unsecured 5,666.22 10,610.55
Total Gross 8,879.18 13,286.56
Less: Impairment loss allowance
{including on joan commitments) 3,886.54 2,026.59
Total {Net) 4,992.64 11,259.97
Loans in India
Public Sectors & 5
Others 8,879.18 13,286.56
Total Gross 8,879.18 13,286.56
Less: impairment loss allowance
{including on loan commitments) 3,886.54 2,026.59
Total {Net} 4,992.64 11,25%.97
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(al

Derivative flnangial Instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derlvative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabllities together with thelr notional amounts,

31 March 2023

Notlonal Notional
Notlonal Fair value of asset {INR) Notienal Fair value of llabllivy [INR)
Particulars 5k t* e *
AMOouUn amount
(i) Commaodity linked derivatives
-Futures Number of units - Number of units 21,100 0.27
5 0.27
Less: amounts offset - 0.27
Sub total {i) - -
{H) Currency derivatives
-Currency Futures Number of currency units 2,50,000 0.03 | Number of currency units - -
-Options purchased Mumber of currency units - - Number of currency units - -
-Options sold {written) Mumber of currency units - - Number of currency units 2,12,52,000 1.85
0.03 1.85
Less: amounts offset 0.03 -
Sub total (il) - - 1.85
{iii)Interest rate derivatives
-Futures Number of G-sec units = Number of G-sec units 1,62,20,000 1.42
- 1.42
Less: amounts offset - 1.42
Sub total {iii] - = " =
{iv) Equity linked derivatives
-Stock Futures Number of shares 75,11,845 82.37 | Number of shares 54,44,117 54.55
-Options purchased Number of shares 23,768,300 1.53 | Number af shares 3
-Options sold Number of shares - B Number ol shares 34,34,700 18.64
83.90 73.20
Less: amounts offset 82.37 54.55
Sub total [iv) 1.53 - 18.64
{v) Index linked derivatives
-index Futures Number of index units 69,700 25.44 | Number of index units 21,700 6.74
-Options purchased Number of index units 31,69,310 98.52 [ Number of index unils - .
-Options sold {written) Number of index units - - Number of index units 17,05,785 287.47
123.97 294.20
Less: amounts offset 25.44 6.74
Sub total {v) 98.52 - 287.47
[vi) Embedded derivatives
- In rarkel linked debentures Number of Index units B 475.15 | Number of index units - 301.86
Sub total (vi} 475.15 301.86
Total Derivative Financlal
Instruments 575.20 605,82

* Netional amaunt represents quantity in case of equity linked and index linked derfvatives
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{a)

Derivative financlal instruments

The table below shows the falr values of derlvative financial instruments recorded as assets or llabilities together with thelr notional amounts.

31 March 2022

National Notional
Notional Fair value of asset 1 Notlonal Falr value of liabllity
Unit Unit
Particulars amount* amount*
{1} Commeodity linked derivatives
-Futures Number of units 13,000 0.00 | Number of units BOO 0.02
0.00 0.02
Less: amounts offset 0.00 0.02
Suh tatal {i) - -
{1} Currency derivatives
-Currency Futures Number of currency unjts 1,90,00,000 21.68 | Number of currency units 45,65,000 3113
-Optiens purchased Number of currency units 3 - Number of currency units - -
-Options sold {writien) Number of currency units - Number of currency units - R
21.68 3.13
Less: amounls offset 21.68 3.13
Sub total (i) - -
{iii) Interest rate derlvatives
-Futures Number of G-sec units 2,45,96,000 1.23 | Number of G-sec unlts
1.23 -
Less: amounlts offset 1.23
Sub total (i} - -
{iv} Equity linked derivatives
-Stack Futures Nurmber of shares 96,97,540 47.70 | Number of shares 60,872,136 39.09
-Cptions purchased Number of shares 10,872,825 71.98
-Options sold (wrilten) Number of shares 15,49,875 15.15
119.68 54.294
Less: amounts offset 47.70 39.09
Sub total (iii) 71.98 15.15
{v} Index linked derivatives
-Index Futures Number of index units 35,750 39.38 | Number of index units 13,450 0.42
-Options purchased Number of index units 14,12,950 235.16 | Number of index units - -
-Options sold {written) Number of index unils o - Number of index units 13,96,050 345.40
274.54 345.81
Less: amounts offsel 39.38 33.13
Sub total (iv) 235.16 312.68
{vi} Embedded derivatives
- In market linked debentures Number of index units - 20.80 | Number of index units - 1,068.47
Sub total (v) 20.80 1,068.47
Total Derivative Financial
Instruments 327.94 1,396.30

* Notionei amount represents quontity in case of equity linked ond index linked derivatives
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{b)

Derivative financial instruments
Offsetting of financial assets and ilabilities
Financial assets subject to offsetting 31 March 2023

Offsetting recognised in the balance sheet

Gross asset
before offset

Amount offset

Net asset recognised in
balance sheet

Derivative financial assets

683.04

107.84

575.20

Financlal liabllities subject to offsetting 31 March 2023

Offsetting recognised in the balance sheet

Gross liability Net lfability recognised in
before offset Amount offset balance sheet
Derivative financial liabilities 672.80 62,98 609.82

As at the reporting date, the amount of gross derivative assets & liabilities that has been offset against the cash margin is Rs.107.84 miilicns and

Rs 62.98 millions respectively.

Financial assets subject to offsetting 31 March 2022

Offsetting recognised in the balance sheet

Gross asset
before offset

Amount offset

Net asset recognised in
balance sheet

Derivative financial assets

437.93

109.9%

327.94

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting 31 March 2022

Offsetting recognised in the balance sheet

Gross liability Net liability recognised in
before offset Amount cffset balance sheet
Derivative financial liabilities 1,471.66 75.36 1,396.30

As at the reporting date, the amount of gross derivative assets & liabilities that has been offset against the cash margin is Rs. 109.99 millions and

£5.75.36 millions respectively.
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28

29

Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Margin placed with broker

Deposits- others

Others

Loans and advances to employees

Dividend receivable

Advances recoverable in cash or in kingd or for value to be received

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes (net off provision for tax)

Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Input tax credit

Prepaid expenses

Other deposits

Vendor advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Advances to employees

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

357.64 67.83
0.09 0.09
342.48 -
0.66 -
- 0.07
834.16 31.87
1,535.03 99.86
118.28 105.93
118.28 109.93
214.71 205.12
20.22 31.30
0.03 0.03
31.03 32.34
0.12 17.08
1.35 0.71
267.46 286.58




ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
30  Equity share capital
Authorised :
5,20,50,000 {Previous year: 5,20,50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 520.50 520.50
37,25,000 (Previous year: 37,25,000} preference shares of Rs. 10 each 37.25 37.25
12,50,000 [Previous year: 12,50,000) preference shares of Rs. 1 each 1.25 125
559.00 559.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up-
1,84,49,240 {Previous year: 1,84,49,240] equity shares of Rs. 10 each 184.49 184.49
184,49 184.49
Non ¢ontrolling Interast
4,223.84 5B80.53
4,223.84 580.53
a.  Movement in share capital :
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,84,45,240 184,45 1,83,88,500 183.89
Shares issued during the year - - 60,740 0.60
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,84,49,240 184.49 1,84,49,240 134.49
b.  Terms/rights attached to equity shares :
The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event
of liguidation of the Parent Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Parent Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehelders.
. Shares held by Holding Company, Pramoater
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of shares % No. of shares %
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, the holding company and its nominees 1,84,45,240 100,00 1,84,49,240 100,00
1,84,49,240 100.00 1,84,49,240 100.00
30.1 Instruments entirely equity In nature
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No of CCDs Amount No of CCDs Amount
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures [CCDs) of Rs.1000 each. 96,00,000 9,600.00 96,00,000 9,600.00
96,00,000 5,600.00 96,00,000 9,600.00
a.  Movement in Instruments during the year :
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) Na of CCDs Amount No of CCDs Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 96,00,000 9,600.00 46,00,000 4,600.00
Issued during the year - - 50,00,000 5,000.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 96,00,000 9,600.00 56,00,000 9,600.00
b.  Terms/rights attached to Instruments entirely equity in nature :
The interest rate is 0.01% per annum and CCDs will be convertible inta equity shares within period not exceeding 10 years from the date of issue.
c. - Detailsof holders halding mare than 5%
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No.of CCD's % No. of CCD's %
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 66,00,000 68.75 66,00,000 68.75
Allium Finance Private Limited 10,00,000 10.42 10,00,000 10.42
Edel Finance Company Limited 20,00,000 20.83 20,00,000 20.83
95,00,000 100.00 96,00,000 100.00
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31

Other equity

Capital Reserve - Opening Balance
Add ; Additions during the year

Capital redemption reserve - Opening Balance
Add : Additicns during the year

Securities premium - Opening Balance
Add : Additions during the year

Revaluation Reserves
Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings

Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 - Opening Balance

Add: Additions during the year

Debenture redemption reserve - Opening Balance
Add: Additions during the year

Deemed capital contribution - ESOP - Opening Balance
Add: Additions during the year

Share capital pending allotment on account of merger - Opening Balance
Less: Shares alloted during the year

Retained earnings - Opening Balance

Add: (Loss)/profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Add: Transferred from revaluation reserve -QC/ (net)
Add : Effect of stake changes

Less: Non controlling interest

Add : ESOP reversal on lapse of vesting period

Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Transfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve
Transfer to capital redemption reserve
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve

As at
31 March 2023

192.76

192.76

§7.00
100.00
167.00

2,667.65

2,667.65

305.56
{20.05)
285.51

352.80
55.57

408.37

1,119.25
{44.93)
1,074.32

31.55

31.55

(8,277.44)

(152.72)
1.26
20.05
{105.09}
103.33
6.56

{8,404.05)
55.57
100,00

(44.93)
{8,514.69)

{3,687.53}

As at
31 March 2022

152.76

152.76

67.00

67.00

2,667.65

2,667.65

325.61
(20.05)
305.56

315.86
36.94

352.80
1,115.25

1,219.25

31.55

31.55

0.61
0.61)

{7,131.53}

{1,112.52}
{0.08)
20.05

{1,037.97)

1,002.56
19.37

(8,240.50)

36,94

(8,277.44)

(3,540.87)
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32

32 (a)

32 (b)

32 (c)

32 (d)

Borrowings
Non current borrowings
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured:
Non-convertible debentures! 19,051.82 11,378.18
Unsecured:
Non-convertible debentures 2,627.52
Term loans from related parties‘ 2,050.00 2,050.00
Subardinated liabilities 2,116.83 2,079.44
Preference share capital 0.01 0.01
[Total 23,218.66 18,135.15

Lease liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities 18.31 8.91
Total 18.31 8.91
Current borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured:

Non-convertible debentures’ 7,632.58 13,368.28
Erom other financial institutions’ 298.59
from banks® 266.39 1,101.59
Bank Overdraft® 355.76 374.11
Unsecured:

Term Loans from from related parties® 10,583.08 2,049.84
Subordinated Debt 73.77 73.75
Inter corporate depc:sits7 99.52 15.60
Total 19,011.10 17,281.76

Lease liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities 7.30 7.21
Total 7.30 7.21
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32 Borrowings {continued)

Notes:-

1  The debentures issued under Debenture Trust Deed dated 26 May 2017, 10 May 2019, 09 September 2021, 30 August 2022 and 23
February 2023 are secured by a pari passu charge on the immovable property, property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, {oans,
investments, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and stock in trade to the extent equal to the principal and interest amount
i.e. redemption value of debentures .

The debentures issved under Debenture Trust Deed dated 26 March 2021 are secured by charge on investments made in Edelweiss
Infrastructure Yield Plus Fund to the extent equal to 1.74 times the principal and interest amount i.e. redemption value of debentures.
The debentures issued under Debenture Trust Deed dated 24 November 2021 are secured by charge on investments made in Edelweiss
Asset Management Limited by the holding company Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and fellow subsidiary company Edel Finance
Company Limited.

The debentures issued under Debenture Trust Deed dated 19 September 2022 are secured by charge on investments made in Nuvama
Wealth Managment Limited.

Debentures amounting to Rs. 889.88 millions (Previous year: Rs. 875.60 millions) are secured by way of pari passu charge on an
immovable property and standard loan assets to the extent of 100% of the outstanding amount of the debentures, unless otherwise

stated.

2 Termloans from others are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e. loans and advances

3 Termleans from banks are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e. loans and advances.

4 Atinterest rate of 11.75% p.a. {Previous year interest rate of 11.75% p.a.)

5 Bank overdraft is in nature of committed Cash Credit lines repayable on demand (Interest rate range, March-23; 7.95% - 11.55%, March-
22:7.95% - 11.55%)

6  Atinterest rate ranging from 9.66% to 15.28% p.a. (Previous year interest ranging from 11.80% to 16.80% p.a.)

7 Unsecured, inter-corporate deposits repayable on demand, at interest rate 6.55% p.a. {Previous year 6.55% p.a.)

8  Following is the repayment schedule of Debt Securities

Debt Securities as at 31 March 2023

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
8.00 - 8.99% - - 409.21 409.21
9.00 - 9.99% - - 483.17 483.17
Various {benchmark linked) 7,632.58 12,655.30 5,524.45 25,812.33
Total 7,632.58 12,655.30 6,416.83 26,704.71

Debt Securities as at 31 March 2022

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
8.00 - 8.95% 1,233.79 - 409.21 1,643.00
9.00 - 9.99% 638.80 - 483.17 1,121.97
Various (benchmark linked) 11,439.45 9,965.35 3,371.94 24,776.74
Total 13,312.04 9,965.35 4,264.32 27,541.71

9  Following is the repayment schedule of Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated labliities as at 31 March 2023

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
0% - 140.00 - 140.00
0.01% - - 0.01 0.01

9.00-9.99% - - 1,560.00 1,560.00

10.00 - 10.99% - - 250.00 250.00
Total - 140.00 1,810.01 1,950.01

Subordinated liabilities as at 31 March 2022

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
0% - - 140.00 140.00
0.01% - - 0.01 0.01

$.00 - 9.99% - - 1,560.00 1,560.00

10.00 - 10.99% . - 250.00 250.00
Total - - 1,950.01 1,950.01
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As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

33  Other financial liabilities
Rental deposits 123.83 64.43
Payable on account of securitisation/ assignments 425.20 27.46
545.03 91.89
34  Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 43.77 22.29
Compensated leave absences 9.08 412
52.86 26.41
35 Trade payables
Trade payables from non-related parties 270.50 76.11
Trade payables from related parties 35.26 184.50
305.76 260.61
Trade Payable Ageing:
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for March 31, 2023 *
Particulars Mare than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
years
(1) MSME 0.05 - - - 0.05
(i) Others 299.24 1.09 1.04 4.34 305.71
{iii)Disputed dues-MSME - -
(iv)Disputed dues-Others - - - - -
Total 2599.29 1.09 1.04 4.34 305.76
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for March 31, 2022 *
Particulars More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
years
(i} MSME 3.48 - - - 3.48
(ii) Others 251.80 122 2.72 139 257.13
{iii)Disputed dues-MSME -
(iv)Disputed dues-Others - - - -
Total 255.28 1.22 2.72 1.39 260.61

»

Unbilled amount is due for Rs. 106.05 million as at 31 March 2023 and Rs. 64.43 million as at 31 March 2022

35.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises
Trade payables includes Rs. 0.05 million (Previous year: Rs. 3.48 million) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid/is payable by the Group during the year to "Suppliers” registered under this act. The

aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said act,
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36

37

38

39

Other financial liabilities

Book overdraft

Debenture application monies received pending atlotment
Payable to employees

Accrued salaries and benefits

Payable to exchange / clearing house [net)
Interest accrued on debt securities

Retention money payable

Provision for short sale

Payable on account of securitisation/ assignments
Advance received from customers

Unclaimed debentures

Other payables

Other current liabilities

Revenue received in advance
Payable to others
Advances from customers

Withholding taxes, Goods and service tax and other taxes payable

QOthers

Provisions

Gratuity
Provision for capex
Compensated absences

Current tax liabilities {net)

Provision for taxation {nat off advance tax)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

4.61 41.11
0.13 0.13
50.63 46,42
790.69 241.63
- 84.72
0.86 0.3%
8.94 9.03
- 40.09
412.49 420.68
403.34 -
- 6.41
276.03 145.94
1,947.72 1,036.55
0.76 0.71
7.70 8.16
B.03 11.35
77.14 75.68
0.38 1.16
94.01 57.06
8.17 12.73
16.37 0.14
1.86 4.30
26.40 17.17
118.70 49.67
118.70 49.67
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40

40.1

41

0]

(i)

42

Revenue from operations
Fee income

Guarantee commission and advisory fee income from Group
Advisory and other fees

Fee income

Service transferred at 3 point in time
Service transferred over time
Total revenue from contract with customers

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at falr value through profit or loss

On trading portfolio

{Loss)/profit on trading of securities (net}

Profit / (loss) on equity derivative instruments (net)

Profit on commodity derivative instruments (net)

Profit/(loss) on trading in currency derivative instruments (net)
Profit/(loss) on interest rate derivative instruments (net)

On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
Profit/(loss) on sale of long term investment

Gain / {loss) on Security Receipts

Income distribution from Fund

Share of (loss) /profit in partnership firm

Fair value changes:

Realised gain

Unrealised (loss)/gain

Total net gain on fair value changes

Dividend income

Dividend on stock in trade
Dividend on long term investment

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

0.13 0.06
33.55 19.83
33.68 19.89
33.68 19.89
33.68 19.89

(1,005.32) (1,010.18)

4,247.97 3,039.78
(15.55) 17.17
{78.91) 69.79

37.70 (30.40)
705.37 77.77
(86.34) -
222.17 437.41

(0.07) 4.19

4,027.02 2,605.53

3,500.53 1,908.22
526.43 697.30

4,027.02 2,605.52

8.58 12.27
0.54 -
9.12 12.27
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a3

44 {a)

45

Interest income

For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2022

On financlal assets

On financial assets

classified at

fair value classified at fair

measured at| through profit measured at value through
Particulars amortised cost or loss Total amortised cost profit or loss Total
Interest on lcans 1,777.68 1,777.68 1,977 .58 1,977 .58
Interest income from investments 128.25 75.63 203.88 143.79 143.79
Interest on deposits with banks 12.58 12.58 39.03 39.03
Interest on margin with brokers 3.49 - 3.49 2.55 - 2.55
Interest income on debt instruments 0.05 901.30 901.35 - 1,998.86 1,998.86
Other interest income 67.32 - 67.32 4131 - 41.31
Total 1,589.37 976.93 2,966.30 2,204.26 1,998.85 4,203.12

Rental income

Rental income

For the year ended

31 March 2023

157.87

For the year ended

31 March 2022

120.03

167.87

120.03

The Group recovered rent from the holding company, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and other external parties for occupying office premises in the

Group's building.

Other operating revenue

Income from Training Centre

Other income

Profit on sale of fixed assets {net)
Liakilities written back

Interest on income tax refund
Miscellaneous income

62.30 23.32
62.30 23.32

0.03 0.15
{0.05) 0.90
10.73 33.30
20.91 35.46
31.62 69.81
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46

46.1

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Expense on employee stock option scheme {ESOP)
Expense on Employee Stock Appreciation Rights
Staff welfare expenses

Employee stock option plans

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,277.45 585.44
31.86 21.37
3.34 5.96
10.12 5.90
43.68 13.38
1,366.45 632.05

The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL"}) has Employee Stock Option Plans and Stock
Appreciation Rights Plans in force. Based on such ESOP/SAR schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP/SAR option to
acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on group policy /
arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options, Group has accepted such cross charge and recognised

the same under the employee cost
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48

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2022

On Financial On financial On Financial On financial
liabilities tabilit/es lizbilities liabilities
measured at falr measured at Total measured at fair measured at Total
value through amortised value through amortised
Particulars profit or loss cost profit or loss cost
Interest on deposits - 46.28 46.28 - 2.649 2.64
Interest on borrowings - 1,274.75 1,274.75 - 2,238.11 2,238.11
Interest on debt securities - 2,200.61 2,200.61 - 1,970.39 1,970.39
Interest cn subordinated liabilities - 205.42 205.42 - 205.12 205.12
Interest on SLBM trades - 4.34 4.34 - 4.49 4.49
Financial and bank charges - 817.94 817.94 - SS0.29 550.29
Interest expense - lease liability 1.93 193 - 11.34 11.34
Other interest expense - 6.53 6.53 - 26.53 26.53
Total - 4,557.80 4,557.80 5,008.91 5.008.91
Impairment loss on financial instruments
For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
On financial On financial
instruments On financial instruments On financial
measured at fair instruments Total measured at fair instruments Total
value through profit measured at value through profit measured at

Particulars and loss amortised cost and loss amortised cost
Loans - {25.91) (25.91) - 418.77 418.77
Trade receivables - 6.07 6.07 {12.98) (12.98)
Investments 3.65 - 3.65 {140.16) - {140.186)
Total 365 {19.84) (16.19) {140.16) 405.79 265.63
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49 Other expenses

49.1

Advertisement and business promotion
Auditors' remuneration (refer note below)
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Computer expenses

Computer software

Clearing and custodian charges
Dematerialisation charges

Directors' sitting fees

Corporate social responsibility-donation
Electricity charges

Foreign exchange loss (net)
Housekeeping and security charges
Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Loss on sale of of fixed assets
Membership and subscription

Office expenses

Postage and courier

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rating support fees

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

ROC expenses

Securities transaction tax

Seminar and conference

Goods and service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Stock exchange expenses

Trusteeship fees

Transportation charges

Travelling and conveyance
Management fees

Miscellaneous expenses

Training centre expenses (Fountainhead)

Auditors' remuneration:

- As Auditors

Others
Towards reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

19.92 285.72
7.92 6.96
258.06 57.56
4.21 6.91
118.70 82.82
8.66 17.17
66.56 252.93
0.25 0.29
1.76 0.86
4.50 7.00
14.52 16.23
0.18 0.09
15.17 21.67
2.00 1.17
328.47 254.98
0.16 0.61
83.85 13.73
65.83 54.54
0.13 0.87
1.16 1.27
28.04 4.32
- 0.08
30.66 18.62
34.20 22.45
0.03 0.07
182.99 338.56
0.05 -
216.09 112.53
39.01 3531
159.69 25.80
0.12 0.24
0.14 0.07
16.84 8.46
113 -
3.45 132.25
10.11 9.24
1,724.56 1,831.48
7.14 5.82
0.67 1.12
0.11 0.02
7.92 6.96
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49.2 Other expenses

(a) Foreign currency transaction
The Group has incurred an amount of Rs. 12.88 millions (Previous year: Rs. 6.48 millions) in foreign currency.
Earnings in foreign exchange is Rs Nil millions (Previous year: Rs. 0.001 millions).

(b} Operating leases
Lease disclosure
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Right-of-use assets 23.92 13.05
Lease liability 25.62 16.11
Depreciation on ROU of building 8.20 28.02
Interest cost 1.93 11.34
Reversal of lease pre-closure (1.04) (7.22)
Total cash outflows for leases 9.85 27.67

(c) Costsharing:

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure
like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its
certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Group. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Group on
the basis of number of employees, area occupied, actual identifications, etc. On the same lines, costs like rent,
electricity charges incurred by the Group for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries and associate companies are
recovered as reimbursement by the Group from the subsidiaries and associate companies on similar basis.
Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads include reimbursements paid and are

net of reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimate.
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49.2 Other expenses (continued)

(d)

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
(i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year was Rs. 4.50 millions (Previous year: Rs. 7.00

millions)

(il) Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2023 on:

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
Constructions/acquisition of any assets Nil Nil Nil
On purpose other than (i) above Rs. 4.5 millions Nil Rs. 4.5 millions

Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2022 on:

Particulars in cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
Constructions/acquisition of any assets Nil Nil Nil
On purpose other than (i) above Rs. 7 millions Nil Rs. 7 millions
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50 Segment reporting

The Group’s business is organised and the management reviews the performance, based on the business segments as mentioned
below:

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business Interest Income on loans and other capital based activities

Agency business Broking and referral services

Training and Leadership Centre Income from Training centre

Treasury business Income from treasury operations, income from investments, interest income on debt
instruments and dividend income

Financing business Wholesale and retail financing

income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditures, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with
individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis.

Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

Since the business operations of the Group are primarily concentrated in India, the Group is considered to operate only in the
domestic segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table gives information as required under the Ind AS -108 - Operating Segment Reporting:

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Segment revenue
| 3) Capital based business 1,549.25 777.05
b) Agency business 2.15 4.17
¢} Training and Leadership centre (Fountain head) 62.29 23.70
d) Treasury business 4,392.78 4,443.42
e) Financing business 1,276.49 1,773.80
f) Unallocated 18.25 33.30
Total 7,301.21 7,055.44
Less : Inter segment revenue - -
Total income 7,301.21 7,055.44
I{ Segment results
3) Capital based business (1,756.13) (2,282.45)
b) Agency business (2.43) 18.69
¢) Training and Leadership centre (Fountain head) (41.79) 86.07)
d) Treasury business 1,123.14 1,261.97
e) Financing business 351.20 254.01
f) Unallocated (112.02) 32.75
Total (438.03) {801.10)
Share of profit in associates - -
Profit before taxation (438.03) (801.10)
Less : Provision for taxation (285.31) 311.42
Profit after taxation {152.72) (1,112.52)
(Il Segment assets
a) Capital based business 15,294.06 14,619.85
b) Agency business 0.05 0.49
¢) Training and Leadership centre (Fountain head) 491.03 530.94
d) Treasury business 27,011.47 15,623.95
e) Financing business 10,044.90 12,642.62
f) Unallocated 3,438.96 1,814.99
Total 56,280.47 45,232.84
IV Segment {iabilities
a) Capital based business 26,831.87 17,312.29
b) Agency business 0.89 1.03
¢) Training ang Leadership centre (Fountain head) 41.95 2614
d) Treasury business 14,021.25 13,458.01
e) Financing business 4,960.76 7,555.31
f) Unallocated 102.95 55.91

Total 45,959.67 38,408.69
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50 Segment reparting (continued)

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
V Capital expenditure (Including capita! work-in-progress)
a) Capital based business 2.45 6.22
b) Agency business 0.00 0.03
¢) Training and Leadership centre (Fountain head) 38.50 2.59
d) Treasury business 46.10 37.65
e) Financing business 131.84 38.09
Total 218.89 84.58
VI Depreciation and amortisation
a) Capital based business 42.22 44.48
b) Agency business 0.01 0.00
¢) Training and Leadership centre (Fountain head) 31.16 31.76
d) Treasury business 22.67 7.56
e) Financing business 10.56 34.67
Total 106.62 118.47
VII Significant non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortisation
3) Capital based business 165.72 308.44
b) Agency business 4.28 (14.47)
c) Training and Leadership centre (Fountain head) 0.27 0.12
d) Treasury business 11.28 94.71
Total 181.55 388.80
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51  Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 - Related Party Disclosure

i List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related party by whom control is

exercised Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Holding company}
fellow subsidiaries ECL Finance Limited
{with whom transacticns have taken place) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Nide Home Finance Limited (formerly Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edel Investments Limited

Ecap Securities and Investments Limited

Edelgive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Allium Finance Private Limited

Edelweiss Interantional {Singapore) Pte Limited

ZUNGC General Insurance Limited (formerly Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund {from 01-Oct-22)

Edeiweiss Gallagher Insurance 8rokers Limited {upto 17-Oct-2021)

Enterprises over which control is exercised by ~ EARC TRUST SC 452
the holding company EARC Trust - SC 385
EARC Trust - 5C 416
EARC Trust - SC 417
EARC Trust - SC 373
EARC Trust - SC 374
EARC Trust - SC 378
EARC Trust - 5C 251
EARC Trust - SC 384
EARC Trust - 5C 461

Associates {upto 30-Mar-23) Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
(with whorm transactions have taken place) Nuvama Asset Management Limited {formerly ESL Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly Edelweiss 8rcking Limited}
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealith Finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)

Name of related parties over whom significant  Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP
influence is exercised India Credit Investment Fund [}

Key Management Personnel Mayank Toshniwal {from August 1, 2022
Ritesh Jain (from August 1, 2022)
Swadesh Agrawal {from May 26, 2022)
Deepak Puligadda (upto May 26, 2022)
Rujan Panjwani (from May 26, 2022 to September 9, 2022}
Vinitha Singh (upto July 31, 2022)




ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

{Currency: Indian rugeas in millions)

51

Transactions with related parties :

Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31 lar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Capital accaunt transactions during the year
1 |Capital call ECL Finance Limited 3,828.72
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 20.69 -
2 [Investrment in units of fund Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund 7.78
Ingia Credit Investment Fund Il 217271 238.32
3 |lnvestment in preference shares of Edel Investments Limited - 6,640.00
4 [investment in debt instruments of Edel Finance Company Limited 1,640.00 -
5 Jinvestment in compulsorily convertible debentures of Edel Investments Limited 750.00 -
6 |issue of compulsorily convertible debentures to Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited - 2,000.00
Allium Finance Private Limited - 1,000.00
Edel Finance Comgany Limited . 2,000.00
7 |Purchase of equity shares fram Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 371472 -
B |Sale of investments in equity shares to ECL Finance Limited 78.48 -
§  |5ale Investment in Preference share capital Edel Investments Limited - 750.00
10 |Redemption of preference shares of Edel Investments Limited 1,940.00 4,543.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,000.00 -
11 |Purchase of units of funds from Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 206.23 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,671.45 -
12 |Redemption of units of AIF Ingia Credit Investment Fung 1! 771.52 150.59
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund - 93.20
13 |Sale of units of funds to ECL Finance Limited 747.37 839.49
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 128,27
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 200.13
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 24637 -
14 |Sale of loans to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 178.86
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 1,594,00
15 |Sale of preference shares to £del Investments Limited - 1,593.00
ECL Finance Limited 81.67
16 |Sale of debt instruments to ECL finance Limited 1,990.90 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 492.28 -
17 |Acquisition of Investment ECL Finance Limited 5,062.75 -
18 |Purchase of Investment EARC TRUST 5C 452 7.334.70
Current account transactions during the year
19 [Shert term loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Lirnited 10,060.15 1.00,589.42
ECL Finance Limited 7,730.00 879.16
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 12,076.22 7,619.20
Edel Finance Company Limited 7,154.65 5.791.06
Nrdo Home Finance Limited 3,600.00 6,500.00
20 |Long term loans taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 2,050.00




ECap Equities Limited {formerty Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financlal statements {continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

51

Transactlons with related parties {continued)

sr. Nature of transaction Related party name For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
21 |Shertterm loans repaid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10,459.33 97,886.22
ECL Finance Limited 5,130.00 879.16
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited £,988.04 8,403.186
Allium Finance Private Limited - 2.90
Nido Home Finance Limited 3,000.00 §,500.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 5.793.95 12,594.10
22 |Short term loans given to Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited 7,463.15 48,583.30
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 224.08
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 1,134.13 200.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 152.15
ECL Finance Limited 4,440.00 8,340.00
Nido Home Finance Limited - 750.00
ECap Securities and Investments Limited 1,275.06 2,895.67
Edel Finance Company Limited 1,400.00 -
23 |Shart term loans repaid by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10,417.51 29,233.43
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 112.56 112.04
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 1,134.13 200.00
£del Finance Company Limited 1,400.00 -
£delweiss Financial Services Limited - 1,304.30
ECL Finance Limited 4,520.00 10,860.00
Nido Home Finance Limited - 750.00
Ecap Securities and Investments Limited 4,170.73 -
24 [Loan portiolio sold under direct assignment ECL Finance Limited 811.61 -
25 |Margins placed with Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 52,632.65 55,944.95
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 430.01
£dal Investments Limited 44891 305.48
26 |Margins withdrawn from MNuvama Clearing Services Limited 62,158.57 56,694.80
Edel Investments Limited 44397 306.64
Nuvama Weallh and Investment Limited - 479.48
27 |Security deposits accepted from Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 64.43
ECL Finance Limited 20.52 -
Nido Home Finance Limited 13.68 -
ZUNQ General Insurance Limited 25.21
28 |Security deposits placed received back Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 100.00
29 |Security deposits accepted returned to Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 29.17
Nide Home Finance Limited - 80.00
ECL Finance Limited 100.00
30 |Amount paic to broker for Cash segment Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - 45,961.60
Edel Investments Limited 58,046.44 13,188.43
31 |Amount received from broker for Cash segment Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 138.26 47,866.88
Edel Investments Limited 56,478.40 14,577.98
32 |Purchase of debt securities from £del Finance Company Limited 1,115.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5,873.85 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Cormpany Limited 132
Edel Investrents Limited 1,203.98 2,231.78
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 1,655.20
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 1,806.89
£delweiss Investment Adviser Limited 76.91 312.92




ECap Equities Limited (formerty Edel Land Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

51 il. Transactions with related parties {continued)
Sr. MNature of transaction Related party name For the year Fer the year
No. ended ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
33 [Sale of debt securities to ECL Finance Limited 1,339.11 240,79
Edel Finance Company Limited 476.64 3,292.35
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited - 2,926.38
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 111.39
Edel Investments Limited - 3,005.32
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 1,650.20
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 157.00 1,211.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 2,750.00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 5.57
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 1,153.89 -
ZUNG General Insurance Limited 96.90 -
34 [Redemption of nifty link debentures - (SIT) Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 2526 2,836.51
Edel Finance Company Limited 3,077.38 1,026.38
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 167.09 214.24
35 |Redemption of Non-convertible debentures - (SIT) Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Cornpany Limited 157.10 75.58
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4,795.66 -
ECL Finance Limited 40.02
36 |Redemgtion of Non-convertible debentures held by Edel Investments Limited 1,120.17 -
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 375.45
ECL Finance Limited 1251
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Umited 7.66 -
37 |Redemption / buyback of nifty link debentures held by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5,275.62 5,159.28
tdel finance Company Limited 3,810.32 2,735.35
Nuvama Wealth Finance Umited 138.4% 1.03
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 215.51
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 311
38 |lssue of nifty linked debentures to Edel Finance Company Limited - 68.63
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 504.12
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 42217 64.63
39 |(Issue of non-convertible debentures to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 2,750.00
40 |Investment in Security Receipts issued by ECL Finance Limited 4,166.40 -
41 |Sale of Security Receipts EARC Trust - SC 385 61.63 -
EARC Trust - SC 416 52.65
EARC Trust - SC 417 111.46 -
India Credit Investment Fund Il 4,252.20 -
42 |Sale of securities Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 5.69 -
ECL Finance Limited 178.13 -
43 |Securities purchased from Nido Home Finance Limited - 378.65
44 |Rent income from Nido Home Finance Limited 19.11 1.80
£delweiss Asset Management Limited 021 -
Edelweiss Gallagher insurance Brokers Limited - 7.75
ECL Finance Limited 27.32 7.52
Nuvarma Clearing Services Limited 75.53 7291
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 3.57 20.36
ZUNQ General Insurance Limited 27.29 2.03
£del Investments Limited 1.21 -
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 0.0¢ -
45 |[Interest income on preference shares of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 110.17 103.50
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Transactions with related parties (continued)

Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
46 |Interest income on margins placed with Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 349 2.55
47 |Interest income on debt instrument of Edel Finance Company Limited 14593 275.16
ECL Finance Limited 39.32 51.72
Nuvama Wealth fFinance Limited - 20.83
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 55381 474,81
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 17233 996.37
€delweiss Financial Services Limited 40.72 1.21
Nido Home Finance Uimited 1.00 0.81
48 | Interest income on compulsorily convertible debentures of | Edel Investments Limited 0.00 .
48 [Interest expenses on debt instrument of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 16.10 863.06
€del Finance Company Limited 6.88 -
ECL Finance Limited 1.53 -
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 36.90 3.50
Edel Investments Limited 168.36 54.13
48 |Interest Expenses on Sub-debt Edelweiss Tokio Life insurance Company Limitad 33.87 30.46
50 [Interest expense on compulsorily convertible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.66 2.10
issued to
Allium Finance Private Limited 0.10 0.03
£del Finance Company Limited 0.20 6.94
€CL Finance Limited 1.56
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited - 0.00
51 |Service charges received Nido Home finance Limited 0.74 1.49
52 |Management Fees received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 29.17
53 [Interest income on loans given to Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 10.60 13.64
Edel Finance Cormpany Limited 1.67 -
€delweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 10.72 0.08
£Cap Securities and Investments Limited - 111
Nido Home Finance Limited - 2.68
ECL Finance Umited 9.97 128.96
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 200.89 505.81
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 1.99
Ecap Securities and Investments Limited 349.47 -
54 |Reimbursement of ARC management fee from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 11.66
55 |Cost reimbursements recovered from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - 1.60
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.00
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.01 0.07
Nido Home Finance Limited 1.52 0.18
Edelweiss Rurai & Corporate Services Limited 3.14 0.00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.00 0.00
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited - 0.26
ECL Finance Limited 3.20 3.05
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 0.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 1.81 037
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 3.71 3.07
Edel Investments Limited 0.02 0.00
Edelweiss Tokio Life insurance Company Limited 2.05 1.97
Edeiweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.18
tdelgive foundation - 0.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.02 -
ZUNO General Insurance Limited 2.04 1.02
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 0.00 0.00
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited - 0.00
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Transactions with related parties fcontinued)

Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
56 |interest expense on loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 103.38 1,202.11
ECL Finance Limited 114.83 1.29
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 538.81 493.50
Allium Finance Private Limited . 0.34
Edel finance Company Limited 245.21 194.76
Nido Home finance Limited 80.75 19.32
S7 |Interest expense on security deposits acceptad from ECL Finance Limited - 11.74
Nido Home Finance Limited - 9.3%
58 |Reimbursements paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.00 0.24
59 [Cost reimbursements paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limitad 2.12 12.57
Nuvarna Wealth Management Limited 0.94 2.36
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 93.76 92,51
ECL Finance Limited 0.51 2.43
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1.53 161
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 0.01 0.07
Nuvarna Clearing Services Limited - -
Ede} Investments Limited 13.46 7.39
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 7.70 -
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.02 -
Mido Home Finance Limited 2.60 -
60 |Referral fees paid to Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 189.15 $1.67
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.30
61 [Management Fees paid to £delweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 3194 19.68
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 4923 49.72
62 |Trusteeship fees paid to Vistra ITCL India Limited 0.12 0.24
63 |[Share of loss in partnership firm Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.07 -
64 |Share of profit in partnership firm Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 4.19
65 |Rent paid o Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4.82 2.28
ECL Finance Lirited 17.54 -
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 0.28
66 |Clearing charges paid to Nuvarna Clearing Services Limited 46.21 37.91
67 |Trade Exposure Charges Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 176.40
&8 [Infrastructure service charges paid to Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 10.00
63 |Shared Premises Cost received from (net) Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.18
ECL Finance Limited - 0.90
Nide Home Finance Limited - 8.66
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.10
70 |Enterprise service charge paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.63
71 |Brokerage paid to Edel Investments Limited 49.24 28.42
Nuvama Wealth and Investrment Limited 0.06 2.07
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited .03 15.66
72 |Financial charges paid to Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 702.36 444.07
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 94.08
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 47.35 3
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 47.82 =
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Transactions with related parties {continued)

Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name For the year For the year
Mo. ended ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
73 [Commission and brokerage paid to Nuvama Weallh and [nvestrnent Limited 2.47
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 002 7.59
Edel {nvestments Limited - 0.11
74 [Rating support fees paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.08
75 |Advisory fees paid to Nido Home Finance Limited 4.30
76 |Corporate Guarantee support fee paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2.10 7.57
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.00 0.00
77 |Professional fees paid to ECL Finance Limited 149.50 98.74
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.78 -
78 (Guarantee commission income from Nido Home Finance Limited 0.03 0.03
ECL Finance Limited 0.02 0.02
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.07
79 |Research fees paid Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 26.00 -
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 34.50
80 |Risk & Reward Fees on Security Receipt sale paid £delweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.86
81 |ESQP expenses paid Edelweiss Finandial Services Limited 26.24 5.48
82 |Enterprise Service charge paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.76 -
83 |Service Fee paid to ECL Finance Limited 0.46 -
82 |Advisory Fees Income Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte Limited 000
83 |Donation Exps EdelGive Foundation 4.50 7.00
B4 [Consultancy & other Advisory fees paid to Edelweiss Alternative Asset Adgvisors Limijted 1.53 -
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 2.06 -
85 [Sale of Fixed Asset to ECL Finance Limited 0.01
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.00
Nuvama Weaith and Investment Limited - 0.02
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.00 7.50
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.31 0.06
£del Investments Limited 0.86 0.2%
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited - 0.00
Nido Home Finance Limited 0.13 0.30
B6 |Purchase of Fixed Asset from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.81 0.14
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.43 0.01
Nuvarma Wealth and Investment Limited 0.00 -
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.00 0.43
Edelwejss Financial Services Limited 0.00 0.00
ECL Finance Limited 0.07 0.02
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited . 0.00
Nuvarna Clearing Services Limited 0.00 0.04
Edel Investments Limited 0.61 0.00
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51 il.  Tramsacticns with related parties (¢ontinued)
Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

87 [Income from Training Centre ECL Finance Limited 0.16 0.35
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.39 0.02
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.80 0.41
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 1.16 0.22
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.13 0.48
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.03 0.02
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance 8rckers Limited - 0.02
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 0.84 0.24
Nido Home Finance Limited 0.25 004
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 0.03
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.14 -
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 0.03 -
ZUNO General Insurance Limited 0.18 -
Edelgive Foundation 0.28 -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.32 -
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.16

88 |Remuneration paid to Mayank Toshniwal 5.07 -
Ritesh Jain 3.19 -
Swadesh Agrawal 5.63
Deepak Puligadda 117 10.97
Rujan Panjwani 2.64
Vinitha Singh 076 1.38

89 |Director Sitting fees 8harat Bakshi 0.35 -
Sunil Phatarphekar 044 0.22
Vinod Juneja Q.95 0.26
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il

Transactlons with related parties {continued)

Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name As at 31 March As at 31 March
No. 2023 2022
Balances with related parties
90 |Short term loans given to (refer note below} Edefweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 112.56
ECL Finance Limited - 80.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,460.10 4,414.46
ECap Securities and Investments Limited - 2,895.67
91 |Short term loans taken from (refer note below) ECL Finance Limited 2,600.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 399.18
Nido Home Finance Limited £00.00 -
£del Finance Company Limited 2,198.58 1,476.55
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 5,004.22 .04
92 |Long term loans taken from (refer note below}) Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,050.00 2,050.00
93 |Stock in trade - debentures and bonds £CL Finance Limited 123.62 761.62
Edel Finance Company Limited 2,244.29 81.88
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 210.43 1,287.14
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5,748.81 4,135.16
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited - 1.77
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 487.78 51.99
MNido Home Finance Limited 21.28
94 |Nifty linked debentures held by Edel Finance Comgany Limited 4570 2,733.70
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 158,20
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 105.90 1,649.50
MNuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 550.00
95 |Non-convertible debentures held by Edel Investments Limited 1,764.00
£delweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10.31 517.92
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 285.00
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 013
£CL Finance Limited 4.93 17.44
96 [Subordinated debenture {Face Value) held by Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 140.00 140.00
97 |Perpetual debenture (Face Value) held by Edel Finance Company Limited 71.00 71.00
98 |Lean pertfolio sold under direct assignment Nido Home Finance Limited - 282.82
99 |Long term deposits payable to ZUNO General Insurance Limited 25.21
ECL Finance Limited 20.52 -
Nido Home Finance Limited 13.68 -
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - £4.43
100 | Compulsorily convertible debentures held by Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited €,600.00 6,600.00
Allium Finance Private Limited 1,000.00 1,000.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 2,000.00 2.000.00
101 |Subordinated liabilities Edelweiss financial Services Limited 0.01 0.01
102 [Trade payables to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - 7.53
Edel Investments Lim{ted 1.27 0.10
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Q60 213
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 21.20 9.16
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 4.42 4.28
Nuvarma Wealth and Investment Limited - 151.02
Edelwess Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.08 -
Nuwvama Clearing Services Limited - 0.73
Nide Home Finance Limited 0.99 3.70
ECL Finance Limited 7.72 5.50
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Transactions with related parties {eontinued)

Sr. Nature of transaction Related party name As at 31 March As at 31 March
No. 2023 2022
103 [Other payable to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 14.37 .75
Edel investments Limited 0.01 20.51
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 156.76 Q.21
Ecap Securities and Investments Limited 0.19 -
ECL Finance Limited - Q.72
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1.01 -
Nido Home Finance Limited - 0.08
104 |Other receivable from Edelwelss International (Singapore} Pte Limited 001 0.01
ECL Finance Limiteg 017 2.83
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.62 Q.19
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 7.90 459
ZUNO General Insurance Limited - -
£Cap Securities angd Investrnents Limited - 16.42
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte Limited - -
Edel Investments Limited 13.63 Q.66
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 0.29
105 [Payable to clearing house Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 190.92
Edel Investments Limited 20.00 -
106 |Accrued interest income on debt instrument Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 4.62
107 |[Interest accrued on loan given o ECL Finance Limited - 32.69
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 20.83
Nido Home Finance Limited - 1.87
108 (Interest payable on (oans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.17 127.93
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 56.99 3059
Edel Finance Company Limited 23.45 9.45
Nido Home Finance Limited 8.39 -
ECL Finance Limited 1.24 -
109 (Inzerest payable on compulsorily convertible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.59 0.36
issued to
Alliurn Finance Private Limited Q.09 0.03
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.18 Q.00
110 [Interest payable on non-convertible debentures held by Edel Investments Limited - 54.34
£delweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.03 15.40
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 8.78
ECL Finance limited 0.34 -
111 |Interest payable on Perpetual debentures held by Edel Finance Company Limited 1.84 -
112 |Interest accrued on Sutordinated debentures held by Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 185.20 155.34
113 |investments in equity shares of Edelweiss Asset Recenstruction Company Limited 1,274.09 1,274.09
114 (Investments in preference shares of Edel Investments Limited - 2,940.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 406.68 1,296.51
Allium Finance Private Limited 123.88 123.88
115 |Investments in venture funds of Edelweiss Value and Growth fung 409.09 242.25
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund 308.20 -
India Credit Investment Fund Il 2,024.35 1,598.14
116 [investment in partnership firm Edehweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.0% 0.05
117 |Investment in debt instruments of ECL Finance Limited - 398.96
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 350.53
Edel Finance Company Limited 1,767 16 -
118 Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 2.70 2.77

’ . . ’_'....,.'— ——
Partner’s current account - receivable frcyfﬂII ‘. GH“%
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51 ii. Transactions with related parties {¢ontinued)
Sr. MNature of transaction Related party name As at 31 March As at 31 March
Na. 2023 2022
119 |Investment in compulsorily convertible debentures of Ede! Investments Limited ¥50.00 -
120 |Trade receivables from Nido Home Finance Limited S.16 7.65
ECL Finance Lymited 9.31 45.41
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 002
ZUNOC General Insurance Limited 6.23 033
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 7.18
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 103 0.53
Edelgive foundation 0.00 Q.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.08 -
Edel Investments Limited 33.94 223.65
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.04 0.02
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 23.14 7.29
Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 2.34 0.01
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 0.01
Nuvama Weaith Finance Limited - 0.00
121 |Unitholder Fund ECL Finance Limited 3,828.72 -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 20.62 -
122 |Cost of Investments EARC TRUST SC - 251 1,200.00
EARC TRUST SC - 384 2,830.00 -
EARC TRUST SC - 452 7.334.70
EARC TRUST 5C - 461 1,032.75 -
123 |Non convertible debentures {Face Value) heid in ECL Finance Limited 21.62 36.37
Nido Home Finance Limited 1.80 7.47
Edel Finance Company Limited 140.00 -
124 |Interest accrued on Non convertible debentures held by Edelweiss Rural & Corgorate Services Limited 0.03 0.04
ECL Finance Limited 0.34 007
Nuvarna Wealth Finance Limited 0.00
125 |Interest accrued on Non convertible debentures held in ECL Finance Limited 097 1.24
Nido Home Finance Limited 0.13 0.52
Edel finance Company Limited 10.85 -
126 [Investment in Security Raceipts issued by EARC Trust SC373 42.05 97.34
EARC Trust 5C 385 114.45 180.88
EARC Trust SC 416 97.78 302.51
EARC Trust SC374 3047 -
EARC Trust SC 378 10.74 -
EARC Trust SC 417 206.99
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51 il. Transactions with related parties {continued)

Sr. Nature of transaction Related pany name As at 31 March As at 31 March

No. 2023 2022

127 |Interest receivable on loans given to Edel finance Company Limited 4.50 -
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 1.24
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 9.65 -
ECap Securities and Investments Limited 5.43 100
Nido Home Finance Limited - 0.54
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4.74 121.11
ECL Finance timited 6.79 18.60

128 |Interest receivable on compulsorily convertible debentures Edel Investments Limited 0.00 -

of

129 [Margins placed with Nuvama Wealth angd Investment Limited - 0.52
Edel Investments Limited 0.05 100.00
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 99.25

130 |Margin receivable from Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 0.47
Nuvama Weallh Management Limited 20.50

Off balance sheet item

131 |Cerporate guarantee given for Nido Home Finance Limited 412.64 280.22
ECL Finance Limited 141.24 242.01
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 1,200.00 -

132 |Corporate guarantee received from Edefweiss Financial Services Limited 6,523.30 1,209.10
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 32.49

133 |Risk & Rewards sharing arrangement Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 702.32 1,102.84

Note

1 0.00represents amount less than Rs. 5,000

2 Interest income on preference share is reported as part of Ind AS Compliance.

3 Loan given/taken to/from related parties and margin money placed / refund received with/ from related parties are disclosed based on the total of debit and credit of
transaction amount given/taken and placed/refund received during the reporting period.

4 As part of fund based activitles, intergroup company loans and advances activities undertaken are generally in the nature of loans repayable at any time before
maturity. Such loans and advances, volumingus In nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business, Pursuant to Ind AS 24 - Related Party
Disclosures, sum of loans given and repaid are disclosed above as in the view of the management it provides meaningful reflection of such related party transactions
on the financial statements. Interest income and expenses on such (oans and advances are disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and
repaid

5 Information relating to remuneration paid to key management personnel mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and deferred
bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis.

6 Disclosure under section 186(4} of the Companies Act, 2013 for ioans and guarantee: Loans have been given for general business purpose
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52 Earnings per share
The computation of earning per share is set out on below table:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) [Loss for the year attibutable to the owners of the parent (170.68) (1,118.57)
{as per statemnent of profit and loss)
Less: Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures - 0.49
Net loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (170.68) (1,118.48)
(b) [Calculation of weighted average number of equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,84,49,240 1,83,88,500
Number of shares issued during the year - 60,740
Number of shares on conversion of Compulisorily Convertible Debentures {CCDs) 4,22,58,000 4,22,58,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,07,07,240 6,07,07,240
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 6,07,07,240 3,50,68,915
Number of dilutive potential equity shares - -
{c) |Baslc and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (a)/(b) {2.82) (31.89}
The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.
53 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities
The Group has pending taxation matters of Rs. 4.99 millions as at balance sheet date {Previous year: Rs. 4.42 millions).
The Group alongwith its holding company Edelweiss Financial Services Limited has given guarantee to trustees of holders of non-
convertible debentures issued by its Group Company Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited amounting to Rs. 1,200 millions (Previous year:
NIL).
Corporate/other guarantee of Rs. 553.80 millions (Previous year Rs 553.80 millions) has been given by the Group on behalf of its group
companies namely, ECL Finance Limited , Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited and Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited.
The Group has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income under
Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Group has filed appeal/s angd is defending its
position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate praceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors,Group is reasonably
certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits on
this ground is remote.
Commitments
The Group has capital commitments of Rs. NIL towards contracts remaining to be executed on capital account as at the balance sheet date
(Previous year: Rs. 16.95 millions) and Rs. 116.04 millions {Previous year: Rs. 55.58 millions) towards loans sanctioned pending
disbursements
Group has capital commitment towards undrawn commitments and uncalled liabilities (refer note 56 D)
54 Approach to capital management

Group objectives, when managing capital, are to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakeholders and (b)
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, reserves and all instruments that are entirely equity
in nature.

Group monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total Debt 42,229.76 35,416.91
Equity 6,096.96 6,243.62
Net Debt to Equity 6.93 5.67
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55.1.

55.2.

55.3.

Risk Manangement

Introduction and risk profile

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group’s shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable
achievement of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key management recognises the critical importance of having
efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Group provides a broad range of financial products and services to a substantial and diversified client base that includes corporations, institutions and
individuals, The Group's products and services span multiple asset classes and consumer segments across domestic and global geographies. The Group's key
lines of business can broadly be classified as below.

o Credit (Retail Credit, Corporate Credit and Distressed Credit)

o Capital Markets

The Group’s diversified business acts as an inherent risk management mechanism. However, the prevailing market environment exposes the Group to various
risks like credit, market, liquidity, compliance, technology amongst others.
Risk management strategy:

The strategy at an execution level is supported by -
1. Risk Management Committee
2. Risk Management framework to ensure each risk the Group is exposed to is given due importance and managed through a well-defined framework and
3. Defined exposure limits and thresholds for businesses to operate
4.  Well-defined Standard Operating Procedures and Product approval framework to ensure risks are mitigated at operational level
5. Adeguate segregation of duties to ensure multi-layered checks and balances

6. Exception reporting framework to ensure process and policy deviations are adequately addressed

Risk management structure
To support the risk strategy and effective risk management, the Group has a Risk Management Committee to oversee the risk management framework.
The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

¢ Todevise process / framework for management of operaticnal risk,

o Identifying concerns & risks,

o Evaluating risks as to consequences & likelihoods,

o Assessment of options for Risk Management,Investment and Credit Committees

o Prioritizing the Risk Management efforts,

o Development of Risk Management Plans,

o Authorization for the implementation of the Risk Management Plans,
0 Tracking the Risk management efforts and manage accordingly,

o Follow on Budgeting-Variance Analysis; and

o Design, develop and implement various measures for cyber security as may be required.




ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Risk management framework
The Group has a Risk Framework, which describes the risk management 2pproach and provides clear accountability for managing risk across the Group. The
framework is subject to continuous evaluation based on existing internal as well external environment.
The current "Eleven risk framewaork" covers the following vectors of risks

0 Business Risk

o Credit Risk

¢ Market Risk

o Liquidity Risk

0 Regulatery Risk

¢ Reputation Risk

¢ Technology Risk

o Operational and Process Risk

o Fraud Risk

o People Risk

©  Physical and Infrastructure Risk

The Group uses different types of tools and techniques for mitigating risk, depending upon the type of risk and quantum. for example:

Financial risks are mitigated through thorough counterparty, client assessment before any exposure is taken, and defined product/program level risk
o limits to ensure exposure does not exceed risk appetite. Committee based approval mechanism is adopted to ensure high exposures are approved with
adequate representation and there is no bias in approvals.

Non-financial risks viz technology, operational, fraud, etc are mitigated through process docurmentation defining clear ownership for each activity, having
adequate system/process level controls like maker-checker, reconciliation, testing and reviews.

Enterprise level risks viz. reputation, compliance, regulatory, etc are controlled through policies and framework, educating employees through training
and risk socialisation sessions.
55.4, Excessive risk concentration

Group's diversified business mode! acts as an inherent mechanism to avoid excessive concentrations of risk.

On the trading portfolio, limit structures have been put in place to address potential concentration risks within each trading portfolio. Any exposure beyond the
approved limits and losses exceeding the VaR limits gets reported as an exception to the Global Risk Committee and is monitored by the group and business risk
teams.
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55.5 Credit Quality

Gross carrying amount of loan assets allocated to Stage |, Stage |, Stage lll :

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Particulars Stage | Stage Il Stage Il| Total Stage | Stage || Stage Il Total
Loans {at amortised cost)
Performing

High grade 5,795.81 - 5,795.81 12,718.88 - - 12,718.88

Standard grade - 1,009.39 - 1,009.39 - 3,001.94 3,001.94

Substandard grade - - - - - -
Non-performing

Impaired - - 4,842.83 4,842.83 - - 4,509.74 4,509.74
Total 5,795.81 1,009.39 4,842 .83 11,648.03 12,718.88 3,001.94 4,509.74 20,230.56
Reconclliation of changes in gross carrylng amount of loan assets and allowances for expected credit loss

Non-credit impaired Credit impalred Total
A Stage | Stage I Stage |l
Particulars
Gross Allowance for Gross Allowance for Gross Allowance for Gross Allowance for
carrying amount ECL* carrying amount, ECL* carrying amount ECL carrying amount ECL

As at 1 April 2021 9,772.95 104.78 5,127.23 431.85 5,918.51 3,702.46 20,818.69 4,289.10
Transfers: 639.28 110.28 (66.67) 22.33 {572.61) [132.62) - -

Transfers to 12 Month ECL {Stage 1) 1,152.85 115.10 (814.61) (57.25) {338.24) (57.85) - -

Transfers to lifetime ECL {Stage 1) {333.88) {3.00) 77291 83.89 {439.03) (80.50)

Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired (179.69) {1.82) (24.97) (4.31) 204.66 .13 - -

{Stage lI)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from transfer {77.48) - 59.16 - 612.56 594.24
of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ {repayments) 2,355.29 {67.75) (207.83) 72.29 (379.69) (125.52) 1,767.77 (120.98)
sale of loans - - {1,588.47) (231.85) - - (1,588.47) {231.85)
Loss on sale of loans - - (237.47) - {450.46) {56.97) (687.93) (56.97)
Less on restructuring of loans - - - - - - - -
Amounts written off {net) (48.64) (5.71) {24.85) (14.19) [6.01) (3.25) (79.50) {23.15)
As at 31 March 2022 12,718.88 64,12 3,001.94 389.59 4,505.74 3,996.66 20,230.56 4,450.37

* Includes Allowance Tor ECL on loan commitments
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55,5 Credit Quality

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount of loan assets and allowances for expected credit loss {continued}

Non-credit impaired

Credit impaired

particulars Stage | Stage Il Stage lll Total

Gross Allowance for Gross Aliowance for Gross Allowance for Gross Allowance for

carrying amount ECL* carrying amount ECL carrying amount ECL* carrying amount ECL

As at 1 April 2022 12,718.88 64.12 3,001.94 389.59 4,509.74 3,996.66 20,230.56 4,450.37
Transfers: {481.87) {(7.83) 72.70 {12.99) 409.17 20.82 - -
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage I} 19.98 2.15 (5.42) (0.72) (14.586) {1.42) - R
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 11} {315.54) 9.71) 330.08 11.54 {14.54) {1.83) - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired (186.31) (C.27) (251.96) {23.81) 438.27 24.07 -
(Stage I
Remeasurement of ECL arising from (1.78) - 28.45 - 194.13 220.80
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ repayments (6,415.39) 36.27 {2,044.73) {294.89] 1,559.46 291.65 (6,900.66) 33.03
Sale of foans - - - - {1,032.23} {86.28) (1,032.23) (86.28)
Loss on sale of loans - - - - - - - -
Lass on restructuring of lcans - - - - - - - -
Amounts written off (net) (25.81) (6.66) (20.52) (9.39} {603.31) [593.04) {645.63} (609.09)
As at 31 March 2023 5,795.81 84.12 1,009.39 100.77 4,842 .83 3,823.94 11,648.03 4,008.82

* Includes Allowance for ECL on loan commitments
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56 Remaining contractual maturities

A. Analysls of non-derivative financial liabilltles by remaining contractual maturlties

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities:
Repaymenls which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Group expects that the counterparties will not request

repayment on the earliest date it could be required to pay.

As at 31 March 2023 0 1o 180 days 181 days to 365 days| I year to 3 years| Qver 3 years Total
Trade payables 305.76 - - - 305.76
Debt securities 3,215.19 4,492.61 13,065.93 6,539.47 27,313.20
Borrowings [other than debt securities) 9,190.12 2,000.43 2,181.04 - 13,371.59
Deposits 16.25 - - - 16.25
Subordinated financial liabilities 22.20 154.95 510.40 2,164.31 2,851.85
Other financial liahilities 1,908.77 46.26 205.12 362.22 2,522.36
Total undiscounted non-derivative financlal liahilities 14,658.29 6,694.25 15,962.48 9,066.00 46,381.02
As at 31 March 2022 0 to 180 days 181 days to 365 days| 1 yearto 3 years Over 3 years Total
Trade payables 260.61 - - - 260.61
Debt securilies 7,947 .56 5,618.24 9,921.18 4,583.58 28,070.56
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,096.82 805.45 2,050.00 - 5,952.27
Deposits 15.59 - - - 15.59
Subordinated financial liabilities 22.20 148.94 342.28 2,653.60 3,167.02
Other financial liabilities 933.29 110.24 34.11 66.92 1,144.56
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities 12,276.07 6,682.87 12,347.57 7,304.10 38,610.61
B. Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities
As at 31 March 2023 0 to 180 days 181 days to 365 days| 1 vyear to 3 years QOver 3 years Total
Cash and cash equivalent and olher bank balances 1,840.53 29.45 0.22 - 1,870.20
Stock in trade 10,287.30 154,07 - - 10,441.37
Trade receivables 113.86 - - - 113.86
Loans 4,679.07 548.76 1,363.54 3,575.37 10,266.74
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - - - 25,577.19 25,577.19
Investments at amortised cost 425.90 - 1,766.89 750.00 2,842.79
Investments at cost 2.70 123 88 - 1,274.15 1,400.73
Other financial assets 1,533.97 Q.66 14,95 8.72 1,558.30
Total 13,883.32 956.82 3,145.60 31,185.44 54,171.18

Apart from the abowve mentioned assets, the Group also has undrawn loan cormmitments amounting to Rs. 116.04 milllons as on 31 March 2023
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56

Remaining contractual maturltles {continued)

Analysls of non-derivative financlal assets by remaining contractual maturltles {continued)

As at 31 March 2022 0 to 180 days 181 days to 365 days| 1 year to 3 years Over 3 years, Total
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 442.35 28.50 0.22 - 471.07
Stock-in-trade 8,554.11 31.96 - - 8,586.07
Trade receivahles 707.95 - - - 707.95
Loans 7,340.38 4,933.33 3,049.40 4,006.05 19,329.16
Investments at fair vaive through profit or loss - - - 8,224.60 8,224.60
Investments at amortised cost 80.43 4,819.65 378.15 402.77 5,681.00
Investments at cost 2.77 123.88 - 1,274.15 1,400.80
Other financial assets 99.77 0.09 14.56 6.46 120.88
Total 17,227.76 9,937.41 3,442.33 13,914.03 44,521.53

Apart from the above mentioned assets, the Group also has undrawn loan commitments amounting to Rs. 55.59 millions as on 31 March 2022
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56  Remalning contractual maturities {continued)

C.  Maturity analysis for derlvatives:

All derivatives which are enlered into for trading purposes are shown in the earliest time band. With respect 10 other derivatives, the remaining contractual maturity

As at 31 March 2023 010 180 days 181 days to 365 days| 1 year to 3 years Over 3 years Total
Net settled derivatives entered into for trading purposes (207.90) - - - (207.90)
hi 1 jvati her than th tered into fi

ot ?r net seltled derivatives (other than those entered into for (26.61) (35,35} 4667 188.57 173.28

trading purposes)

Total {234.51} {35.35) 46.67 188.57 {34.62)
As at 31 March 2022 0 to 180 days 181 days to 365 days| 1 yearto 3 years Over 3 years Total
Net settled derivatives entered into for trading purposes {20.70) - - - (20.70)

| ivati ther than th niered into f

Othz?r net settled derivatives (other than those entered i or (546.97) (268.94) (190.56) (51.19) (1,047.66)
trading purposes)

Total |567.67) {258.94} {190.56) (51.19) [1,068.36)

D. The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Group’s contingent liabilities and commitments:

As at 31 March 2023 010 180 days 181 days to 365 days| 1 year to 3 years Over 3 years Total
Undrawn commitments for AlF funds 20,034.71 - - - 20,034,771

Undrawn ipan commitments 116.04 - - - 116.04

Total 20,150.75 - - - 20,150.75

As at 31 March 2022 0 to 180 days 181 days to 365 days] 1 year to 3 years Over 3 years Total
Undrawn commitments for AIF funds 3,603.44 - - - 3,603.44
Estimated amount ¢f cantracts capital account 16.55 - - - 16.95
Undrawn loan commitments 55.59 - - - 55.59
Total 3,675.98 - - - 3,675.98
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57 Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal lhe fair value or fulure cash flows ol financial instruments will Nuctuate due to changes in markel vanables such as inlerest rates. foreign exchange
rates and equity prices. The Group classifies exposures Lo market risk into eilher trading or non—rading portfolios and manages each of lhose porticlios separalely.

U] Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of finantial instruments.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity o a reasonably possible change in inlerest rates (all glher variables being conslam) of Ihe Group's stalement of profil and loss

and equity.
2022-23
increase In IRF rate  |Effect on profit  |Effect on Equity |Decrease in IRF rate |Effect on profit Effect on Equlty
Currency of borrowing / advances (%] before tax (%} before tax
INR Loans .25 5332 533 0.25 15.33) 15.23)
INR Borrowings 5 (80.96) - 5 40.96 -
INR Borrowings 0.25 (28.85) {1.18) 0.25 28.85 1.138
2021-22
Increase in IRF rate  |Effect on profit |Effect on Equity |Decrease in IRF rate |Effect on profit Effect on Equity
Currency of borrowing / advances (%] before tax 1%) before tax
INR Loans 0.25 .72 6.72 0.25 6.72) (6.72)
INR Borrowings 5 (116.27) - 5 116.27 -
INR Borrowings 0.25 13.34) (3.34) 0.25 3.34 3.34

(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is lhe risk that the value of a financial instrurment will luctuale due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign curency nisk arise majosly on account of currency

derivalive trading.

The lable below indicales the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at lhe end of lhe reported periods. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possibie movement of the currency rate againsl the INR (all olher variables being constant) on the statemenl of profit and loss {due to the fair value of currency sensilive
non-trading monelary assets and liabilitie s} and equity {due 10 the ¢change in fair value of currency swaps and forward foreign exchange conlracls used as cash flow hedges).

2022-23
Increase In currency |[Effect on profit Decrease in currency |Effect on profit
Currency rate (%) hefare tax Effect on Equity [rate {%) before 1ax Effect on £quity
usD 5 (1.12) - 5 1.12 -
2021-22
Increase in currency |Etfect on profit Decrease in currency |Effect on profit
Currency rate (%) before tax Effect on Equity [rate (%) before tax £ffect on Equity
usb 5 (54.77) - 5 54.77 -

{iii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in equity

share prices.

2022-23
Increase in equity Effect on profit Decrease in equity  [Effect on profit

Impact on price (%) before tax Effect on Equity |price (%) before tax Effect on Equity
Derlvatives 5 197.91 - 5 (197.91)

Short Sales - SLBM 5 - - 5 - -
Commodity Derivatives S 6.29 - El (6.29) -
Equity/ETF/SRs 5 977.39 5 {977.38} -
Mutual Fund 5 24.19 - 5 (24.19) -
Debt instruments {incl preference} g 368.12 - 5 (368.12) -
Nifty link debenture 5 113.12 - 5 (113.12) -
AlF Funds 5 205.79 5 (205.79) -
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i)

(iv]

Market risk fcontinued)]

Equity price risk {continued)

2021-22

Increase in equity

Effect on profit

Decrease in equity

Effect on profit

Impact on price (%) before tax Effect on Equity |price (%} before tax Effect on Equity
Derivatives 5 101.62 - 5 {101.62)
Short Sales - SLBM B {141} - 5 1.41
Cornmedity Derivatives 5 3.60 5 [3.60}
Equity/ETF/SRs 5 102.65 - 3 1102.65)
Mutual Fund 5 68.20 - 5 {68.50)
Debt instruments (incl preference) 5 308.30 5 (308.30)
Nifty link debenture 5 38.00 5 {38.00)
AlF Funds 5 250.19 - 5 (250.19)

Index price risk

Index price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of equity indices.

202223

Increase in index Effect on profit Decrease in index Effect on prafit
Impact on price (%) before tax Effect on Equity |price {%) before tax Effect on Equity
Derivatives S 87.59 - 5 (87.59}
Embedded derivatives [Nifty-linked
debentures) 5 8.66 - 5 (8.56)

2021-22

Increase in index Effect on profit Decrease in index Effact on profit
Impact on price (%) before tax Effect on Equity |price {%) before tax Effect on Equity
Derjvatives 5 29.60 - 5 (29.60)
Embedded derivatives {Nifty-linked
debentures) 5 {52.38} - 5 52.38
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58 Total market risk exposure

Fair value or future cash flows of financiai instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non—trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately. Such risks the
market risk for the trading portfolio is managed and monitored based on a VaR methodoiogy that reflects the interdependency between risk variables. Non—trading

positions are managed and monitored using other sensitivity analysis.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Carrying amount |Traded risk [Non-traded risk |Carrying amount |Traded risk |Non-traded risk
Assets
Cash and cashequivalent and other bank balances 1,870.20 - 1,870.20 471.07 471.07
Derivative financial instruments 575.20 575.20 - 32794 327.94 -
Financial assets at FVTPL 25,577.19 10,064.34 15,512.85 8,224.60 6,088.85 2,135.75
Stock-in-trade 10,441.37 10,441.37 - 8,586.07 8,586.07 -
Loans 7,639.21 - 7,639.21 15,780.19 - 15,780.19
Trade receivables 113.86 1132.86 707.95 - 707.95
Investments at cost 1,400.73 - 1,400.73 1,400.80 - 1,400.80
Financial investments— amortised cost 2,942.79 - 2,942.79 5,681.00 - 5,681.00
Other financial assets 1,558.30 0.35 1,557.95 120.88 66.83 54.05
Total 52,118.84 21,081.26 31,037.58 41,300.50 15,069.69 26,230.81

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Carrying amount |Traded risk |Non-traded risk |Carrying amount [Traded risk |Non-traded risk
Liability
Borrowings 13,255.24 - 13,255.24 5,874.13 - 5,874.13
Derivative financial instruments 609.82 609.82 - 1,396.30 1,396.30 -
Deposits 99.52 - 99.52 15.60 15.60
Subordinated liabilities 2,190.60 - 2,180.60 2,153.19 - 2,153.19
Debt securities (including commercial papers) 26,684.40 - 26,684.40 27,373.98 - 2737398
Trade payables 305.76 - 305.76 260.61 - 260.61
Lease Liabilities 25.61 - 25.61 16.12 - 16.12
Other liabilities 2,496.75 403.35 2,093.40 1,128.44 84.72 1,043.72
Total 45,667.70 1,013.16 44,654.53 38,218.37 1,481.02 36,737.35
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59 Disclosure related to collateral:

Following table sets out availability of Group's financial assets to support funding:

Pledge as Awvallable as Total carrying
31 March 2023 collateral others 1* collateral others 2** amount
Cash and cash eguivalent including bank balance 47.59 1,435.56 349.49 37.46 1,870.20
Stock in trade 8,880.57 1,364.98 178.13 17.69 10,441.37
Trade receivables - 5435 59.51 - 113.86
Derivative assets - - - 575.20 575.20
Loans 1,775.26 3,112.66 2,751.29 - 7.639.21
Investments 10,214.64 2,468.57 4,840.06 12,397.45 29,920.72
Other financial assets 0.60 - 826.19 73151 1,558.30
Current tax assets (net) - - - 514 32 514.32
Deferred tax assets (net) - - - 1,488.63 1,488.63
Investment property 941.72 - 1.50 - - 943.22
Property, plant and equipment 606.70 - - 60.32 667.032
Goodwill - - - 60.94 60.94
Other Intangible assets - - - 120.48 120.48
Intangible assets under development - - - - -
Other assets - - - 366.99 366.99
Tatal assets 22,467.18 8,437.62 9,004.67 16,371.00 56,280.47

Pledge as Available as Total carrying
31 March 2022 collateral others 1* collateral others 2** amount
Cash and cash equivalent including bank balance 44,19 126.04 268.97 31.87 471.07
Stock in trade 5,080.94 3,444.02 50.29 10.82 8,586.07
Trade receivables 23.41 664.10 20.44 - 707.95
Derivative assets - - - 327.94 327.94
Loans 4,783.51 4,741.76 5.303.08 951.84 15,780.19
Investments 1,984.10 9,514.52 2.805.04 598.64 15,306.40
Qther financial assets 0.60 - 38.9¢ 81.32 120.88
Current tax assets (net) - - - 535.90 535.90
Deferred tax assets (net) - - - 1,185.50 1,185.50
Investment property 1,016.71 1.50 - - 1,018.21
Property, plant and equipment 547.62 66.06 - 25.21 638.99
Goodwill - - - 60.94 60.94
Other Intangible assets - - - 154 1.54
Intangible assets under development - - - §52.54 92.94
Other assets - - - 398.32 398.32
Total assets 13,481.08 18,958.10 B8,490.78 4,302.88 45,232.84

* (Represents assets which are not pledged but are kept for asset security cover towards debentures issued and Group believes 1t is restricted from using

to secure funding for legal or other reason)
** (Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Group would not consider readily available to secure funding in the

normal course of business)
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(a)

0]

(i)

(i)

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair values of assets and liabilities

31 March 2023

Particulars Level 1| Level2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments (assets):

Exchange-traded derivatives 169.71 38.19 - 207.90
Embedded derivative assets in market-linked debentures - - 475.14 475.14
Total derivative financial instruments (assets) 169.71 38.19 475.14 683.04
Stock-in-trade

Other debt securities and preference shares 1,691.83 | 4,804.00 210.43 | 6,706.27
Market-linked debentures - - 3,219.53 | 3,219.53
Mutual fund units 483.77 - - 483.77
Equity instruments 31.81 - - 31.81
Total stock-in-trade 2,207.41 ( 4,804.00 | 3,429.96 | 10,441.37
investments

Units of Alternative [nvestment Funds - - 5,277.55| 5,277.55
Equity instruments 14.70 - 6,696.17 | 6,710.87
Preference shares - - 316.56 316.56
Debt securities - - 91.15 91.15
Security receipts - - 13,181.06 | 13,181.06
Total investments measured at fair value 14.70 - |25,562.49 | 25,577.19
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 2,391.82 | 4,842.19 | 29,467.59 | 36,701.60

31 March 2023

Particulars Level 1| Level2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -

Exchange-traded derivatives 303.48 67.46 - 370.94
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 301.86 301.86
Total derivative financial instruments (liabilities) 303.48 67.46 301.86 672.80

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Provision for short sale - SLBM trading - - - -

Total financial liablilities at FVTPL N - - -

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 303.48 67.46 301.86 672.80

Fair valuation techniques:

Debt securities

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, however nifty linked debentures
have embedded derivative characteristics. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes
of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. Group has used quoted price of national stock
exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded Group has used
CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Equity instruments, Preference shares, Mutual fund units and units of Alternative Investment Funds

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on recognized stock exchanges with readily avaifable active
prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on fund
net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such NAV Such instruments are
generally Level 3. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are inltially recognised at transaction price and re-
measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level. Unlisted equity
securities are classified at Level 3.

Derivatives

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment
grade credit ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are exchange
traded futures and options contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include quoted price for
exchange traded derivatives and Black Scholes models (for option valuation).
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(a

(iv)

Fair values of financial instruments {continued)

Fair values of assets and liabilities {continued)

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone

derivative.

Group uses valuation models. Inputs to valuation models are determined from observable market {Indices) data
wherever possible, including prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers. Group classify these embedded

derivative as level 3 instruments

31 March 2022

Particulars Levell| Level2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Exchange-traded derivatives 31643 | 100.70 - 417.13
Embedded derivative assets in market-linked debentures - 20.80 20.80
Total derivative financial instruments (assets) 316.43 | 100.70 20.80 437.93
Stock-in-trade

Other debt securities and preference shares 734.96 | 4,275.33 | 1,284.20 | 6,294.49
Market-linked debentures - 536.53 536.53
Mutual fund units 1,377.90 - - 1,377.90
Equity instruments 377.15 - - 377.15
Total stock-in-trade 2,490.01 | 4,275.33 | 1,820.73 | 8,586.07
Investments

Units of Alternative Investment Funds - - 5,304.66 | 5,304.66
Equity instruments 709.99 161.00 870.99
Preference shares - - -
Debt securities - - - -
Security receipts - 1,240.22 | 1,240.22
Other debt securities and preference shares 808.72 808.72
Total Investments measured at fair value - 709.99 | 7,514.,60 | 8,224.59

Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

2,806.44 | 5,086.02 [ 9,356.13 [ 17,248.58

31 March 2022

Particulars Level 1| Level 2 Llevel 3 Total
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -

Exchange-traded derivatives 356.37 46.82 5 403.19
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 1,068.47 | 1,068.47
Total derivative financial instruments (liabilities) 356.37 46.82 | 1,068.47 | 1,471.66
Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss -

Provision for short sale - SLBM trading 40.09 40.09
Total financial liabilities at FVTPL 40.09 - - 40.09
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 396.46 46.82 | 1,068.47 | 1,511.75
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60 Fair values of financial instruments {continued)

{b} Movement in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars Stock in trade -
Other debt Embedded| Investmentsin
securities and Stock in trade - derivative In| debt securitles| Investmentsin
preference|  Investmentin| Investmentsin Nifty linked] market-linked| and preference|unguoted equity
shares| Security receipts units of AIF debentures debentures shares shares Total
At 1 April 2022 1,284.20 1,240.22 5,304.66 536.53 (1,047.67} 808.72 161.00 8,287.66
Purchase - 13,019.62 2,778.31 7,480.14 - 166.60 3,714.72 29,155.39
Sales {1,066.15) (1,074.73) (2,598.59) {3,702.08) - (573.16) {178.77) {9,193.47)
Issuances - - - - 265.23 = - 265.23
Settlerments - - - - 805.91 - 805.91
Transfer from level 3 - - - - - {2.51) (2.51)
Gains / (losses) for the period {2022-23) recognised in consolidated statement of
profit and loss {7.62) {4.05) (2,206.83) {1,095.07) 149.80 5.55 3,001.73 (156.49)
At 31 March 2023 210.43 13,181.06 5,277.55 3,219.53 173.28 407.71 6,696.17 29,165.73
Unrealised gains / {losses) related to balances held at the end of the period {32.93) {4.05}) {1,989.13) 13.74 145.80 9.08 2,922.19 1,068.70
Particulars Stockin trade -
Other debt Embedded| Investmentsin
securitles and Stock in trade - derivative in| debt securities| Investments in
preference| Investmentin| Investmentsin Nifty linked| market-linked| and preference|unquoted equity,
shares| Security receipts units of AIF debentures debentures shares shares Total
At 1 April 2021 1,514.84 708.11 6,760.78 743.06 (1,137.37) 669.65 230.46 9,489.53
furchase - £94.08 19568 10,433.07 - 149,96 32.50 11,505.29
sales - (161.97) (2,116.72) (9,415.59) - - {18.65) {11,712.53)
Issuances - - - (83.64) - - (83.64)
Settlements - - - - 524.82 - 524.82
Gains / (losses) for the period (2021-22) recognised in consolidated statement of
profit and loss {230.64) - 464.92 {1,224.01) (351.48) {10.83) (83.31) (1,435.41)
At 31 March 2022 1,284.20 1,240.22 5,304.66 536.53 {1,047.67) B08.72 161.00 B,287.65
Unrealised gains related to balances held at the end of the period {33.14) - 695.67 122.50 (351.49) (13.05) (103.31) 317.18
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60 Fair values of financial instruments {continued)

{c) Unobservable inputs used in measuring falr value categorised within Level 3 :

Following tables set out information about significant unobservable inputs used at respective balance sheet dates in measuring financial instruments categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy:

Falr value of

Fair value of
liability as on

Range of estimates

Increase in the

unobservabie input

unobservable input

Decrease in the

asset as on 31 31 March Significant| (welghted-average) for|(% or as the case may| Change in fair {% or as the case| Change in fair|
Type of financial instruments March 2023 2023 Valuation techniques unchservable input unebservable input be)| value may be) value
Discounted
Stock in trade - Other debt securities cash Expected future cash Rs. 1,666 to 6,98,982 per
210.43
and preference shares - |flow flows debenture 5% - 5% -
- Discount rate 12% 0.5% - 0.5%,
Stock in trade - Nifty linked Rs 100,481 to 180,001
debentures 3,219.53 i Fair value of index Price per debenture per debenture 5% 160.98 5.0% {160.98)
Embedded derivative in market-
linked debentures 475.14 {301.86)|Fair valve of index Index levels 5% 3.66 5.0% (8.66)
Fair value of underlying [ Rs. 509 to 195,704 per
Investments in units of AIF 5,277.55 - Net assets approach investments Unit 5% 263.88 5% (263.88)
Investments in unquoted equity Comparabie transaction and Rs. 1,817 to 2,235 per
shares 6,696.17 - |P/E "|Fair value per share share 5% 334.81 5% (334.81)
investments in debt securities and Comparable transaction and Rs. 100 to 2,15,000 per
preference shares 407.71 P/E Fair value per share share 5% 20.39 5% {20.39)
Discounted Cash flow. The Expected future cash Rs 706 to Rs 1,500 per
present value of expected flows security receipt 5% 653.56 5%, {653.56)
future economic benefits to be
derived from the ownership of | Risk-adjusted discount
Security receipts 13,181.06 - |the underlying investments of |rate 12.00% 0.5% (3.48) 0.5% 351
Total 29,467.59 (301.86) 1,438.80 (1,438.77)
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60 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{c)

Unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value categerised within Level 3 {continued):

Fair value of Increase in the Decrease in the|
Fair value of| Illabllity as on Range of estimates| unobservable input unobservable input
asset as on 31 31 March Significant| (welghted-average} for|(% or as the case may| Change in fair {% or as the case| Change [n fair|
Type of financial instruments March 2022 2022 Valuation techniques ungbservable input unobservable input be) value may be) value
. . Expected future cash Rs. 1,667 to Rs 837,765
Stock in trade - Other qebt-FuRizy 1,284.20 - |Discounted cash flow flows per NCD 5% 18.16 5% 14.89
and preference shares - Discount rate 17% 0.5% 1623 0.5% 16.84
Stock in trade - Nifty linked Rs 120,834 to 164,682
debentures 536.53 - |Fair value of index Price per debenture per debenture 5% 26.83 5% (26.83)
Embedded derivative in market-
linked debentures 20.80 (1,068.47)|Fair value of index Index levels - 5% (52.38) 5.0% 52.38
Fair value of underlying | Rs. 32 to 233,644 per
investments in units of AIF 5,304.66 - |Net assets approach investments Unit 5% 265.23 5%, (265.23)
Investments in unquoted equity Comparable trznsaction ang Rs. 2 t0 216,133 per
shares 161.00 - |P/E Fair value per share share 5% 8.05 5% {8.05)
Investments in debt securities and Comparable transaction and Rs. 6910 216,133 per
preference shares 808.72 - P/ Fair value per share share 5% 40.44 5% (40.44)
Discounted Cash flow. The
present value of expected Expected future cash
future economic benefits to be |flows 7,353.23 5% 3151 5% (31.51)
derived from the ownership of | Risk-adjusted discount
Security receipts 1,240.22 - |the underlying investrnents of  |rate 12.00% 0.5% {0.55) 0.5% 0.56
Total 9,356,13 {1,068.47) 353.52 (287.39)
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60  Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

31 March 2023

Particulars Total carrying amount| Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalent 1,739.96 1,739.96 1,739.96 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 130.24 130.24 130.24 - -
Trade receivables 113.86 113.86 - 113.86 -
Loans 7,639.21 7,186.73 - - 7,186.73
Investments at amortised cost 2,942.79 2,942.79 - 2,923.57 13.22
Investments at cost 1,400.73 1,400.73 - 1,400.73 -
Qther financial assets 1,558.30 1,558.30 0.35 1,557.95 -
Total 15,525.09 15,072.61 1,870.55 5,996.11 7,205.95
Financial liabilities:

Trade payables 305.76 305.76 - 305.76 B
Debt securities 26,684.40 26,700.65 - 26,700.55 -
Borrowing (other than debt securities) 13,255.24 13,255.24 - 13,255.24 -
Deposits 9952 99.52 - 99.52

Subordinated liabilities 2,190.60 2,214.12 - 2,214.12 -
Lease liabilities 25.61 25.61 - 25.61 -
Other financial liabilities 2,496.75 2,456.75 - 2,486.75

Total 45,057.88 45,097.65 - 45,097.65 -

Off-balance sheet items
Undrawn commitments .
Loan cornmitments 116.04 115.04 - - 116.04
Total . 116.04 116.04 - - 116.04

31 March 2022

Particulars Total carrying amount | Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalent 320.81 320.81 320.81 -

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 150.26 150.26 150.26 -

Trade receivables 707.95 707.95 - 707.95 -
Loans 15,780.19 15,147 .63 - 5,543.74 9,603.85
Investments at amortised cost 5,681.00 5,681.00 - 5,681.00 -
Investments at cost 1,400.80 1,400.80 - 1,400.80 -
Other financial assets 120.88 120.88 66,86 54.02 -
Total 24,161.89 23,529.33 537.93 13,387.51 9,603.89
Financial liabilities:

Trade payables 260.61 260.61 260.61 -
Debt securities 27,373.98 27,701.18 - 27,701.18 -
Borrowing (other than debt securities) 5,874.13 8,678.56 - 8,678.56 -
Deposits 1562 15.60 - 15.60
Subordinated liabilities 2,153.18 2,182.55 - 2,182.55 -
Lease liabilities 16.12 16.12 - 16.12 =
Qther financial liabilities 1,128.44 1,128.44 2 1,128.44 Y
Total 36,822.08 39,983.06 = 39,983.06 3
Ctf-balance sheet items

Undrawn commitments - - - - 4
Loan commitments 55.59 55.59 - - 55.59
Total 55.59 55.59 - - 55.59

Note;

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and
contract liability without a specific maturity.
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(a)

(b)

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan {provident fund)

Amount of Rs. 26.89 millions (Previous year: Rs. 21.37 millions) is recognised as expenses and included in “Employee benefit” - Notes 46 in

the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan (gratuity):

The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

Statement of profit and loss of the year:
Net employee benefit expenses (recognised in employee cost):

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Current service cost 7.63 4.71
Interest on defined benefit obligation 2.75 1.78
Past service cost {1.69) -
Actuarial loss/(gain) - -

Total included in employee benefit expenses 8.69 6.49

Balance sheet:
Detatls of provision for gratuity:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Liability at the end of the year

51.94

35.02

Amount in balance sheet

51.94

35.02

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

tiability at the beginning of the year 35.02 53.66
Transfer in/(out) 11.63 {18.09}
{nterest cost 2.75 1.78
Current service cost 7.63 4.71
8enefits paid (2.52) (7.26)
Past service cost (1.69) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (0.88) 0.22
Liability at the end of the year 51.94 35.02

Non-current liability at the end of the year
Current liability at the end of the year

43.77
8.17

Amount recognised in the balance sheet:

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Liability at the end of the year 51.94 35.02
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year - -
Amount recognized in balance sheet 51.94 35.02

Experience adjustment:

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

On plan liabilities (gain)/loss
On pian assets (gain}/loss

(2.32)

(0.40}

Estimated contribution for next year

Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Discount rate current

Salary escatation current
Employees attrition rate
Excepted return on plan assets

Mortality rate

7.10%
7.00%
16.00%
5.90%

IALM 2012-14 (UIt.)

5.90%
7.00%
16.00%
5.00%

IALM 2012-14 (Ult.)
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61 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits (continued)

Movement in other comprehensive income

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Balance at start of year (Loss}/ Gain (8.19) (7.97)
Re-measurements on defined benefit obligation

a) Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions - (0.25)
b) Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptions 3.67 1.20
c) Actuarial Loss/{Gain) from experience over last past year (2.80) (1.17)
Re-measurements on plan assets

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net defind benefit

liability / {asset) - -
8alance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain {7.32) (8.19)

Sensitivity analysis:

DBO increases/ (decreases) by

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate

1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate

1% Increase in Discount Rate

1% Decrease in Discount Rate

1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate

1% Decrease in Withdrawal Rate

Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 1 year)
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 years)

2.64
(2.42)
{2.40)
2.66
0.01
(0.02)
Negligible change
Negligible change

1.85
(1.81)
(1.81)

1.91
(0.10)

0.10

1
3

Movement in surplus / (deficit)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Surplus / (Deficit} at start of year {35.02) {53.66)
Net (Acquisition) / Divestiture - -

Net Tranfer {In}/ Out (11.63) 18.09
Current Service Cost {7.63) {4.71)
Past Service Cost 1.69 -

Net Interest on net DBO (2.75) {1.78)
Re-measurements 0.89 {0.22)
Contributions / Benefits 2.52 7.26
Surplus / (Deficit) at end of year {51.94) (35.02)
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|

Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credlt risk by class of financial asset. They also shows the total fair value of collateral, any surplus collateral {the extent to which the
fair value of collateral held Is greater than the exposure to which it relates), and the net exposure to credit risk.

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

MaxImum exposure

Maximum exposure to

to credit risk Principal type of collateral credit risk Principal type of collateral
Financial assets
Cash collateral on securities borrwed and reverse repurchase agreement 0.08 | Unsecured 100.35 | Unsecured
Loans:
Retail Loans - Secured 3,160.67 | Property 4,305.45 |Property
Retail Lpans - Unsecured 626.19 690.64
{land, real estate {lend, real estate

Wholesale loans - Secured 1,601.74 |property ond securities) 2,844.39 |property and securities)
Wholesale loans - Unsecured 5,259.44 | Unsecured 12,390.07 | Unsecured
Trade receivables 113.86 | Unsecured 707.95 | Unsecured
Debt instruments at amortised cosl 1,789.82 | Secured 402.83 | Secured
Debt instruments at amaortised cost 750.00 | Unsecured 1,041.73 | Unsecured
Other financial assets 1,558.30 | Unsecured 120.88 | Unsecured
Total financial assets at amortised cost Total [A) 15,860.10 22,604.29
Derivative financial instruments 683.03 | Unsecured 437.92 | Unsecured
Financial assets al FVTPL {except equity) 1,414.38 | Secured 1,505.82 | Secured
Financial assets at FVTPL [except eguity) 7,536.41 | Unsecured 5,325.20 [ Unsecured
Total financlal Instruments at fair value through profit or loss. Total {B) 9,633.82 7,268.94
Debt instruments at fair vaiue through OC - B
Total debt instruments at fair value through OCI {C) - R
Loan commitments 110.78 |Property; book receivables 53.52 |Property; book receivables
Financial guarantee contracts - -
Total (D} 110.78 53.52
Total (A+B+C+D}) 25,604.70 29,926.75
Financial assets thatare stage |l{ and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Maximum exposure to

Maximum exposure to

credit risk (carrying credit risk (carrying Fair value of|
amount before ECL}) Associated ECL Carrying amount, Fair value of collateral| amount before ECL) Assoclated ECL| Carrying amount collateral
Financial assets
Wholesale loans - Secured 1,601.74 705.58 896.16 2,202.14 206.66 136.23 70.43 336.85
Whelesale loans - Unsecured 3,082.63 3,082.63 - - 4,055.03 3,807.63 247.40 -
Retail Loans 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36 225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57
-
Total (A) ﬁ_ E Eﬂ‘ 4,830.60 3,815.23 1,015.37 2,382.50 4,486.89 3,981.42 505.46 752.42
Loan commitments ot =N, - - = . . N - -
Total (B) # 2 - i N - - - - -
Total TR 4,830.60 3,815.23 1,015.37 2,382.50 4,486.89 1,981.42 505.46 752.42
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63 Transfer of financial assets
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the
transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities.

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Securitisations

Carrying amount of transferred assets (held as Collateral) 1,132.73 297.37
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 813.50 315.55
Fair value of assets 1,232.64 277.89
Fair value of associated liabilities 813.50 315.55

Net position at FV 419.14 (37.66)
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64 Analysis of risk concentration

Industry analysis - Rlsk concentration for 31 March 2023

Pharmace uti

Financial Retall and Industrial cals & Manufacturi | Information
Particulars services Consumers | wholesale | Construction| ©OIl & gas Real Estate Energy Others Goods Chemical ng technology Services Insurance Total
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 575.20 - - - - - 575.20
Financial assets carried atfair
value through profit and lass 22,506.18 5.66 783.61 0.20 0.03 76.50 12,637.76 - 7.59 0.35 0.26 0.42 36,018.56
Cash and cash equivalent 1,739.96 - - - - - 1,739.96
Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalent 130.24 - - - - - - - 130.24
Trade receivables 97.65 - - - - - 023 0.20 - - 0.08 15.70 113.86
Loans 1,184.23 5,803.92 317.83 - 7.56 118.07 100.30 - 7.30 - 7,639.21
Investments at amortised cost 292357 19.22 - - - 2,942.79
Investments at cost 1,400.73 - - - - - - 1,400.73
Other financial assets 1,305.00 - 250.11 - - - 319 - - - - - - 1,558.30

31,862.76 5.66 §,937.64 337.25 0.03 84.06 121.49 12,738.26 7.59 0.35 0.26 7.38 16.12 52,118.85
Other Commitments - - 116.04 - - - - - - - - - - 116.04
Total 31,862.76 5.66 7.053.69 337.28 0.03 84.06 121.45 12,738.26 - 7.59 0.35 0.26 7.38 16.12 52,234.89
tndustry analysis - RIsk concentration for 31 March 2022

Pharmaceuti

Financlal Retail and Industrial cals & Manufacturi | Information
Particulars services Consumers | wholesale [ Construction| Oil & gas Real Estate Energy Others Goods Chemlcal ng technology Services Insurance Total
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 327.94 - - - - - - 327.94
Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit and loss 13,310.82 122.43 1,956.96 0.76 - 149.96 15.86 3.99 164.75 164.90 10.47 754.34 155.43 16,810.67
Cash and cash equivalent 320.81 - - - - - - 320.81
Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalent 150.26 - - - - - - - - 150.26
Trade receivables 705.11 . - - 0.27 - 0.78 1.75 - - 0.04 707.95
Loans 8,191.34 5,913.60 726.91 771.56 139.26 548 17.43 - 14.61 15,780.19
Investments at amartised cost 4,635.41 - 1,041.73 - 3.87 5,681.01
Investments at cost 1,400.80 - - - - - - - - 1,400.80
Other financial assets 117.95 - - - - 2.93 - - - - - - - 120.88

29,160.44 122.43 7,870.56 1,769.40 - 521.79 158.05 4.77 171.98 182.33 3.47 10.47 754.34 170.08 41,300.51
Other Commitments - - 55.59 - - - - - - - - - 55.59
Total 29,160.44 122.43 7,926.15 1,769.40 - 921.79 158.05 417 171.98 182.33 3.87 10.47 754.34 170.08 41,356.10
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65 Other Disclosures

(i) Relationship with Struck off Companies

Below are the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies

Act, 1956.
Name of the struck off company Nature of Relationship with |Balance Balance
transactions with  [the Struck off outstanding as on |outstanding as on
struck-off Company |company, if any, to|31 March 2023 31 March 2022
be disclosed

Retention Money
Maruti Infrastructure Limited Payable None 3.66 -
M R D ENTERPRISES Payable None - -
Shah & Associates Payable None - -
S.K.R infotech Payable None - -
Kamal Enterprises Payable None - N
Shams Cable Network Payable None - 0.00
MEDIFIT BEALTH & FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED |Receivables None 0.44 -
Zedpack Pvt Ltd Receivables None - 0.01
Shellz India Pvt Ltd Receivables None - 0.02
Total 4.10 0.03

(i) During the year, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Ouring the year, no funds have been received by the Group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iv) Disclosure of Ratios

Sr. No. |Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Total debts to total assets """ ! 0.75 0.78
2 *Net profit margin (%) ‘< "2 -1.20% -9.16%
3 Interest Service Coverage Ratio /"¢ 3! 0.90 0.84
* The variation in Net profit margin is on account of higher net gain on fair value changes in the current year ended 31 March
2023

1. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt / Total assets

2. Net profit margin (%) = Net profit after tax / Total Income

3. Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Profit before interest and tax/Interest expense

4. Current ratio, Long term debt to working capital, Debt service coverage ratio, Bad Debts to account receivables ratio, Current
liability ratio, Debtors turnover, Inventory turnaover and Operating margin (%) are not applicable owing to the business model of
the Group.
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(v)

(vi)

Other Disclosures {continued)

During the year, the Income Tax Authorities (" the Department” } had conducted a search under section 132 of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 on the premises of the Group during March 2023. The Group had provided the requisite details which were sought by
the income tax authorities during the course of the search. Subsequently, the Group has received summons under section 131
(1A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 seeking certain data/information, which the Group is in the process of responding. While
uncertainty exists regarding the outcome of the proceedings by the Department, the Group is extending its full cooperation with
the concerned income tax authorities and based on current internal assessment management is of the view that this will not
likely to have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement dated March 9, 2023 to the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement dated
March 18, 2021 between Edelweiss Financial Service Ltd (Ultimate Holding Company), Edelweiss Global Wealth Management
Limited, PAGAC Ecstasy Pte Ltd and Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited), the
amendment to the articles of association of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited and the appointment of independent trustee,
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited and its subsidiary Companies ceased to be associate of the Group w.e.f. March 30, 2023.
Accordingly, pursuant to Ind AS 28 — ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’, Company’s retained interest in Nuvama
Wealth Management Limited has been recorded at fair value as at March 31, 2023
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66 Note on merger and demerger
The Board of Directors of the parent holding company at its meeting held an 14th june, 2021, had approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
amongst ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Lang Limited (ELL) (‘Amalgamated or Resulting Company’)), Demerged business of ECap Securities &
Ilnavestments Limited (formerly ECap Equities Limited (‘Demergad Company’ ~ defined in the scheme as demerged undertaking and thereby entire activities,
business, operations and undertakings of the Demerged Company farming part of the Trading and Capita) Markels business)) and EC Commodity Limited
(‘Amalgamating Company’) and their respective shareholders and creditors, under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, which inter-alia envisaged the following:

ECap Eguities Limited (formerly Edet Land Limited (‘Amaigamated or Resvlting Company’)), Demerged business of ECap Securities and Investments Limited
(formerly £Cap Equities Limited {‘Demerged Company’ — defined in the scheme as demerged underiaking and thereby entire activities, business, operations
and undertakings of the Demerged Company forming part of the Trading and Capital Markets business)) and £C Commodity Lmited {‘Amalgamating
Company’) has been amaigamated with effect from 01 April 2020 (‘the Appointed date’).

The National Company Law Tribunal 8ench at Mumbai has appraoved the aforementioned Scheme on 10th Jan 2022 under the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the certified copy of the said order was filed with the Registrar of Companies on 03rd March 2022.

The National Company Law Tribunal Bench at Hyderabad has approved the aforementioned Scheme on 09th Feb 2022 under the applicable provisions of the
Compaanies Act, 2013 and the certified copy of the said order was fited with the Registrar of Companies on 25th March 2022.

Assets and liabilities of Demerged Undertaking of Ecap Securities and Investments Limited (formerly €Cap Equities Limited) which was merged into Ecap
Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) with effect from the Appointed Date as on 01st April 2020, is given below:

Assets and Liabilities of Demerged Undertaking of Ecap Securities and Investments Umtied (formerly ECap Equities Limited) and EC Commodity Limited
as at 01 April 2020

As at 01 April 2020 Demerged EC Commodity Total
undertaking of Ecap Umited
Securities and
Investments Limited
(formerly ECap
Equities Limited)

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 470.52 4,32 474.84
Derwvative financial instruments 2,440.09 - 2,440.09
Stock in trade 5,842.42 264.92 6,107.34
Trade receivables 103.76 0.15 103.91
Loans 11,706.95 0.01 11,706.96
Investments 11,683.42 18.59 11,702.01
Other financial assets 130.79 2.51 133.30
32,377.95 29050 32,668.45
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 196.39 6.52 202.91
Deferred tax assets {net) 824.81 0.17 824.98
Investmeat property 84339 - B843.35
Property, plant and equipment 30.17 0.26 3043
Goodwill 6094 - 60.94
Other Intangible assets 23.22 0.00 23.22
Other non- financial assets 130.81 11.29 142.10
2,109.73 18.24 2,127.97
TOTAL ASSETS (A) 34,487.68 308.74 34,796.42
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 2,614.96 - 2,614.96
Trade payables 163.52 4,14 167.66
Debt securities 20,084.80 - 20,084.80
Borrowings (ather than debt securities) 7,292.53 366.32 7,658.85
Deposits 2,615.49 - 2,615.49
Other financial liabilities 391.24 0.41 391.65
33,162.54 370.87 33,533.41
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 24.75 2.36 27.1%
Provisions 12.69 0.56 13.28
Other non-financial liabilities 148.97 2.25 151.22
186.41 5.17 191.58
EQUITY
Equity share capital - - -
Other equity 1,138.73 (367.30) 771.43
1,138.73 (367.30) 77143
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B) 34,437.68 B.74 34,496.42
Equity ang praference shares issued by the Group to shareholders of Ecap Securities and - - 061
Investments Limtied (formerly ECap Equities Limited) and EC Commodity Limited on merger and
demerger (C)
Capital Reserve accounted on merger and demerger (A-B-C) 0.00 300.00 299.38

The excess of book value of assets over liabilities of Rs 299.38 millions post issuance of new shares has been accounted as capital reserve in the books of the
Group on merger ang demerger.

The Demerged undertaking of Ecap Securitias ang Investments Limtied (formerly ECap Equities Limited) and EC Commodity Limited has been accounted into
the Group under 'Paoling of laterests Methad' in accardance with Appendix C of IND AS 103 (Business Combinations of enlities under common control).
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67 Cash flow disclosure

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in
Particulars 1 April 2022 Cash flows fair values Others* 31 March 2023
Borrowings 35,416.91 5,591.90 - 1,220.95 42,228.76
Total liabilities from financing actlvities 35,416.91 5,591.90 - 1,220.95 42,229.76
Changes in
Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash flows fair values Others* 31 March 2022
Borrowings 46,582.8% {11,255.67) - 85.69 35,416.91
Total liabilities from financing activities 46,582.89 (11,255.67) - 89.69 35,416.91

* Others Includes interest accrued but not paid on financing liabilities.
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Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's presentation
As per our report of even date attached.
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